RENAISSANCERE HOLDINGS LTD Form 10-Q April 29, 2010 Table of Contents

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For The Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2010

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_

Commission File No. 001-14428

# RENAISSANCERE HOLDINGS LTD.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

**Bermuda** (State or Other Jurisdiction of

98-014-1974 (I.R.S. Employer

Incorporation or Organization) Identification Number)
Renaissance House, 8-20 East Broadway, Pembroke HM 19 Bermuda

(Address of principal executive offices)

(441) 295-4513

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes "No"

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ", Non-accelerated filer ", Smaller reporting company ".

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No x

The number of outstanding shares of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. s common shares, par value US \$1.00 per share, as of April 26, 2010 was 57,903,912.

Total number of pages in this report: 79

# RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd.

# INDEX TO FORM 10-Q

# Part I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1	Financial Statements	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2010 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2009	3
	Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009	4
	<u>Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders</u> Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009	5
	Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009	6
	Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009	7
	Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	8
Item 2	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	42
Item 3	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	75
Item 4	Controls and Procedures	75
Part II OTH	ER INFORMATION	76
Item 1	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	76
Item 1A	Risk Factors	76
Item 2	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	76
Item 3	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	77
Item 5	Other Information	77
Item 6	<u>Exhibits</u>	77
Signatures	PanaissancaPa Holdings I td	70

2

### PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

### Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

# RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and Subsidiaries

# **Consolidated Balance Sheets**

(in thousands of United States Dollars)

	March 31, 2010 (Unaudited)	December 31, 2009 (Audited)
Assets	,	Ì
Fixed maturity investments available for sale, at fair value		
(Amortized cost \$1,447,788 and \$3,513,183 at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively)	\$ 1,485,161	\$ 3,559,197
Fixed maturity investments trading, at fair value		
(Amortized cost \$3,060,513 and \$747,983 at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively)	3,049,335	736,595
Short term investments, at fair value	864,328	1,002,306
Other investments, at fair value	866,865	858,026
Investments in other ventures, under equity method	84,942	97,287
Total investments	6,350,631	6,253,411
Cash and cash equivalents	358,773	260,716
Premiums receivable	511,832	589,827
Ceded reinsurance balances	121,836	91,852
Losses recoverable	156,820	194,241
Accrued investment income	32,784	31,928
Deferred acquisition costs	74,489	61,870
Receivable for investments sold	53,863	7,431
Other secured assets	27,651	27,730
Other assets	171,577	205,347
Goodwill and other intangibles	75,416	76,688
Total assets	\$ 7,935,672	\$ 7,801,041
Liabilities, Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest and Shareholders Equity		
Liabilities	¢ 1 (05 207	¢ 1.702.00 <i>C</i>
Reserve for claims and claim expenses	\$ 1,695,397	\$ 1,702,006
Reserve for unearned premiums	614,490	446,649
Debt Primary halance and halance and halance h	549,086 241,544	300,000
Reinsurance balances payable Payable for investments purchased	136,838	381,548 59,236
Other secured liabilities	27,500	27,500
Other liabilities	221,001	27,300
Other habilities	221,001	230,009
Total liabilities	3,485,856	3,173,608
Commitments and Contingencies		
Redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	658,525	786,647
Shareholders Equity		

Preference shares	650,000	650,000
Common shares	58,320	61,745
Additional paid-in capital		
Accumulated other comprehensive income	30,771	41,438
Retained earnings	3,052,200	3,087,603
Total shareholders equity	3,791,291	3,840,786
Total liabilities, redeemable noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity	\$ 7,935,672	\$ 7,801,041

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements}.$ 

# $Renaissance Re\ Holdings\ Ltd.\ and\ Subsidiaries$

# **Consolidated Statements of Operations**

# For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

(in thousands of United States Dollars, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

	Three mor March 31, 2010	nths ended March 31, 2009
Revenues		
Gross premiums written	\$ 563,465	\$ 598,301
Net premiums written	\$ 415,983	\$ 446,836
Increase in unearned premiums	(137,857)	(145,088)
Net premiums earned	278,126	301,748
Net investment income	67,181	42,126
Net foreign exchange losses	(11,342)	(10,155)
Equity in earnings of other ventures	2,156	1,736
Other loss	(5,731)	(14,795)
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments	48,598	22,126
Total other-than-temporary impairments	(33)	(19,022)
Portion recognized in other comprehensive income, before taxes		
Net other-than-temporary impairments	(33)	(19,022)
Total revenues	378,955	323,764
Expenses		
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	79,057	86,197
Acquisition expenses	44,675	44,604
Operational expenses	64,551	39,757
Corporate expenses	5,559	6,588
Interest expense	3,156	4,136
Total expenses	196,998	181,282
Income before taxes	181,957	142,482
Income tax benefit	4,215	852
	105.150	
Net income	186,172	143,334
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	(10,550)	(35,475)
Net income attributable to RenaissanceRe	175,622	107,859
Dividends on preference shares	(10,575)	(10,575)
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders	\$ 165,047	\$ 97,284

Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders per common share - basic	\$ 2.75	\$ 1.57
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders per common share - diluted	\$ 2.73	\$ 1.57
Dividends per common share	\$ 0.25	\$ 0.24

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements}.$ 

4

# $Renaissance Re\ Holdings\ Ltd.\ and\ Subsidiaries$

# Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

# For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

(in thousands of United States Dollars)

(Unaudited)

Preference shares	Three mo March 31, 2010	onths ended March 31, 2009
	¢ (50,000	¢ 650,000
Balance - January 1	\$ 650,000	\$ 650,000
Repurchase of shares		
Balance - March 31	650,000	650,000
Common shares		
Balance - January 1	61,745	61,503
Repurchase of shares	(3,716)	0 2,2 00
Exercise of options and issuance of restricted stock and awards	291	821
Balance - March 31	58,320	62,324
Additional paid-in capital		
Balance - January 1		
Repurchase of shares	(14,284)	
Reduction in redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	6,125	7,250
Exercise of options and issuance of restricted stock and awards	8,159	4,123
Balance - March 31		11,373
Accumulated other comprehensive income	41 420	55.005
Balance - January 1	41,438	75,387
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments	(10,667)	(5,857)
Portion of other-than-temporary impairments recognized in other comprehensive income other comprehensive income		
Balance - March 31	30,771	69,530
Retained earnings		
Balance - January 1	3,087,603	2,245,853
Net income	186,172	143,334
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	(10,550)	(35,475)
Repurchase of shares	(185,658)	
Dividends on common shares	(14,792)	(14,961)
Dividends on preference shares	(10,575)	(10,575)
Balance - March 31	3,052,200	2,328,176

Total Shareholders Equity \$ 3,791,291 \$ 3,121,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

### RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and Subsidiaries

# **Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income**

# For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

(in thousands of United States Dollars)

(Unaudited)

	Three mon March 31, 2010	nths ended March 31, 2009
Comprehensive income		
Net income	\$ 186,172	\$ 143,334
Change in net unrealized gains on investments	(8,929)	(6,372)
Portion of other-than-temporary impairments recognized in other comprehensive income		
Comprehensive income	177,243	136,962
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	(10,550)	(35,475)
Change in net unrealized gains on investments attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	(1,738)	515
Comprehensive income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	(12,288)	(34,960)
Comprehensive income attributable to RenaissanceRe	\$ 164,955	\$ 102,002
Disclosure regarding net unrealized gains  Total realized and net unrealized holding gains (losses) on fixed maturity investments available for sale and net		
other-than-temporary impairments	\$ 34,204	\$ (2,753)
Net realized gains on fixed maturity investments available for sale	(44,904)	(22,126)
Net other-than-temporary impairments recognized in earnings	33	19,022
Change in net unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments available for sale	\$ (10,667)	\$ (5,857)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# $Renaissance Re\ Holdings\ Ltd.\ and\ Subsidiaries$

### **Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows**

# For the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

(in thousands of United States dollars)

(Unaudited)

	Three mon March 31, 2010	nths ended March 31, 2009	
Cash flows provided by operating activities			
Net income	\$ 186,172	\$ 143,334	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities			
Amortization and depreciation	13,987	(740	
Equity in undistributed earnings of other ventures	10,731	10,105	
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments	(48,598)	(22,126	
Net other-than-temporary impairments	33	19,022	
Net unrealized (gains) losses included in net investment income	(24,940)	16,976	
Net unrealized losses included in other loss	1,419	12,897	
Change in:			
Premiums receivable	77,995	(27,569	
Ceded reinsurance balances	(29,984)	(61,290	
Deferred acquisition costs	(12,619)	(15,806	
Reserve for claims and claim expenses, net	30,812	(70,244	
Reserve for unearned premiums	167,841	206,378	
Reinsurance balances payable	(140,004)	(25,879	
Other	(2,256)	(42,059	
Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities			
Cash Jiows (usea in) provided by investing activities			
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments available for sale	2,461,565	1,695,498	
Purchases of investments available for sale	(376,820)	(1,720,159	
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments trading	812,692		
Purchases of investments trading	(3,078,390)		
Net sales of short term investments	137,978	36,007	
Net sales of other investments	16,101	23,476	
The same of other miresiments	2.720		
Net sales (purchases) of other assets	2,729	(965	
	(24,145)	`	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets	,	(965 33,857	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities	,	`	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  Cash flows used in financing activities	(24,145)	33,857	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  Cash flows used in financing activities  Dividends paid - RenaissanceRe common shares	(24,145) (14,792)	33,857	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  Cash flows used in financing activities  Dividends paid - RenaissanceRe common shares  Dividends paid - preference shares	(24,145) (14,792) (10,575)	33,857	
Net sales (purchases) of other assets  Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  Cash flows used in financing activities  Dividends paid - RenaissanceRe common shares  Dividends paid - preference shares  RenaissanceRe common share repurchases	(24,145) (14,792) (10,575) (203,658)	(14,961 (10,575	

Edgar Filing: RENAISSANCERE HOLDINGS LTD - Form 10-Q

Net cash used in financing activities	(103,023)	(199,296)
Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash	(5,364)	(2,912)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	98,057	(25,352)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	260,716	274,692
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$ 358,773	\$ 249,340

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements}.$ 

### RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and Subsidiaries

### **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars) (Unaudited)

### NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) for interim financial information and in conformity with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, these unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the Company s financial position and results of operations as at the end of and for the periods presented. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated from these statements. The preparation of unaudited consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. The major estimates reflected in the Company s consolidated financial statements include, but are not limited to, the reserve for claims and claim expenses; losses recoverable, including allowances for losses recoverable deemed uncollectible; estimates of written and earned premiums; the fair value of investments and financial instruments, including derivative instruments; premiums and other accounts receivable, including allowances for amounts deemed uncollectible; and estimates relating to the Company s deferred tax asset valuation allowance. This report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009.

RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. (RenaissanceRe) was formed under the laws of Bermuda on June 7, 1993. Together with its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and DaVinciRe (as defined below), which are collectively referred to herein as the Company, RenaissanceRe provides reinsurance and insurance coverages and related services to a broad range of customers.

Renaissance Reinsurance Ltd. ( Renaissance Reinsurance ), the Company s principal reinsurance subsidiary, provides property catastrophe and specialty reinsurance coverages to insurers and reinsurers on a worldwide basis.

The Company also manages property catastrophe and specialty reinsurance business written on behalf of joint ventures, which principally include Top Layer Reinsurance Ltd. ( Top Layer Re ), recorded under the equity method of accounting, and DaVinci Reinsurance Ltd. ( DaVinci ). Because the Company owns a noncontrolling equity interest in, but controls a majority of the outstanding voting power of, DaVinci s parent, DaVinciRe Holdings Ltd. ( DaVinciRe ), the results of DaVinci and DaVinciRe are consolidated in the Company s financial statements. Redeemable noncontrolling interest DaVinciRe represents the interests of external parties with respect to the net income and shareholders equity of DaVinciRe. Renaissance Underwriting Managers Ltd. ( RUM ), a wholly owned subsidiary, acts as exclusive underwriting manager for these joint ventures in return for fee-based income and profit participation.

RenaissanceRe Syndicate 1458 (Syndicate 1458) is the Company s Lloyd s syndicate which was licensed to start writing certain lines of insurance and reinsurance business effective June 1, 2009. RenaissanceRe Corporate Capital (UK) Limited (RenaissanceRe CCL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is Syndicate 1458 s sole corporate member and RenaissanceRe Syndicate Management Ltd. (RSML), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company from November 2, 2009, is the managing agent for Syndicate 1458.

The Company s Insurance operations include direct insurance and quota share reinsurance written through the operating subsidiaries of RenRe Insurance Holdings Ltd. (RenRe Insurance). These operating subsidiaries principally include Stonington Insurance Company (Stonington), which writes business in the U.S. on an admitted basis, and Glencoe Insurance Ltd. (Glencoe) and Lantana Insurance Ltd. (Lantana), which write business in the U.S. on an excess and surplus lines basis, and also provide reinsurance coverage, principally through quota share contracts, which are analyzed on an individual risk basis. The Insurance operations also

include the results of Agro National Inc. ( Agro National ), a managing general underwriter of crop insurance.

8

### **Table of Contents**

The Company, through Renaissance Trading Ltd. (Renaissance Trading) and RenRe Energy Advisors Ltd. (REAL), provides certain derivative-based risk management products primarily to its clients to address weather and energy risk. The Company also engages in hedging and trading activities related to those transactions and provides fee-based consulting services, respectively.

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. Because of the seasonality of the Company s business, the results of operations and cash flows for any interim period will not necessarily be indicative of the results of operations and cash flows for the full fiscal year or subsequent quarters.

### NOTE 2. CEDED REINSURANCE

The Company purchases reinsurance and other protection to manage its risk portfolio and to reduce its exposure to large losses. The Company currently has in place contracts that provide for recovery of a portion of certain claims and claim expenses, generally in excess of various retentions or on a proportional basis. The earned reinsurance premiums ceded were \$117.5 million and \$90.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition to loss recoveries, certain of the Company s ceded reinsurance contracts provide for recoveries of additional premiums, reinstatement premiums and for lost no-claims bonuses, which are incurred when losses are ceded to other reinsurance contracts. Total reinsurance recoveries netted against claims and claim expenses incurred were \$34.9 million and \$11.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. The Company remains liable to the extent that any reinsurance company fails to meet its obligations.

### NOTE 3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company accounts for its weighted average shares in accordance with FASB ASC Topic *Earnings per Share*. Basic earnings per common share is based on weighted average common shares and excludes any dilutive effects of stock options and restricted stock. Diluted earnings per common share assumes the exercise of all dilutive stock options and restricted stock grants.

9

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share data)	2010	2009
Numerator:		
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders	\$ 165,047	\$ 97,284
Amount allocated to participating common shareholders (1)	(4,196)	(1,809)
	\$ 160,851	\$ 95,475
Denominator (in thousands):		
Denominator for basic income per RenaissanceRe common share -		
Weighted average common shares	58,407	60,635
Per common share equivalents of employee stock options and restricted shares	480	354
101 to minor similar equi vinence of employee stock options and resultated similars	.00	
Denominator for diluted income per RenaissanceRe common share -		
Adjusted weighted average common shares and assumed conversions	58,887	60,989
Basic income per RenaissanceRe common share	\$ 2.75	\$ 1.57
•		
Diluted income per RenaissanceRe common share	\$ 2.73	\$ 1.57

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents earnings attributable to holders of unvested restricted shares issued under the Company s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and Non-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan.

### NOTE 4. DIVIDENDS AND COMMON SHARE REPURCHASES

The Board of Directors of RenaissanceRe declared, and RenaissanceRe paid, a dividend of \$0.25 per common share to shareholders of record on March 15, 2010.

On February 17, 2010, the Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company s authorized share repurchase program to an aggregate amount of \$500.0 million. Unless terminated earlier by resolution of the Company s Board of Directors, the program will expire when the Company has repurchased the full value of the shares authorized. The Company repurchased \$203.7 million of shares during the three months ended March 31, 2010, and through the period ending April 26, 2010, the Company repurchased an additional 416 thousand common shares in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of \$23.7 million and at an average share price of \$56.85. Future repurchases of common shares will depend on, among other matters, the market price of the common shares and the capital requirements of the Company. See Part II, Item 2 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds for additional information.

### NOTE 5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company has two reportable segments: Reinsurance and Insurance.

The Reinsurance segment consists of: 1) property catastrophe reinsurance, primarily written through Renaissance Reinsurance and DaVinci; 2) specialty reinsurance, primarily written through Renaissance Reinsurance and DaVinci; 3) Lloyd s, which includes reinsurance and insurance business written through Syndicate 1458; and 4) certain other activities of ventures as described herein. The Reinsurance segment is managed by the Global Chief Underwriting Officer, who leads a team of underwriters, risk modelers and other industry professionals, who have access to the Company s proprietary risk management, underwriting and modeling resources and tools.

The Insurance segment, formerly known as the Individual Risk segment, includes underwriting that involves understanding the characteristics of the original underlying insurance policy. The Company s Insurance segment is also managed by the Global Chief Underwriting Officer. The Insurance segment currently provides insurance written on both an admitted basis and an excess and surplus lines basis, and also provides some reinsurance which is written on a quota share basis.

10

### **Table of Contents**

The Company s financial results relating to the operating subsidiaries managed by the ventures unit include the financial results of Renaissance Trading and are included in the Other category of the Company s segment results. Also included in the Other category of the Company s segment results are the Company s investments in other ventures, including Top Layer Re, Tower Hill Holdings Inc. and Tower Hill Insurance Group, LLC (collectively the Tower Hill Companies ), and in respect of the Company s ownership of a warrant to purchase 2.5 million common shares of Platinum Underwriters Holdings Ltd. (Platinum).

The Company does not manage its assets by segment; accordingly, net investment income and total assets are not allocated to the segments.

11

A summary of the significant components of the Company s revenues and expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	Reinsurance	Insurance	<b>Eliminations (1)</b>	Other	Total
Gross premiums written	\$ 512,392	\$ 51,880	\$ (807)	\$	\$ 563,465
Net premiums written	\$ 402,309	\$ 13,674			\$ 415,983
Net premiums earned	\$ 250,040	\$ 28,086			\$ 278,126
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	101,534	(22,477)			79,057
Acquisition expenses	23,818	20,857			44,675
Operational expenses	40,151	24,400			64,551
Underwriting income	\$ 84,537	\$ 5,306			89,843
Net investment income				67,181	67,181
Equity in earnings of other ventures				2,156	2,156
Other loss				(5,731)	(5,731)
Interest and preference share dividends				(13,731)	(13,731)
Redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe				(10,550)	(10,550)
Other items, net				(12,686)	(12,686)
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments				48,598	48,598
Net other-than-temporary impairments				(33)	(33)
The other-man-temporary impairments				(33)	(33)
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders				\$ 75,204	\$ 165,047
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 206,751	\$ 34,005			\$ 240,756
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(105,217)	(56,482)			(161,699)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(103,217)	(30,482)			(101,099)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ 101,534	\$ (22,477)			\$ 79,057
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	82.7%	121.1%			86.6%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(42.1%				(58.2%)
mis ciam enpense rano prior accident years	(.2.170	(201.170)			(23.270)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	40.6%	(80.0%)			28.4%
Underwriting expense ratio	25.6%				39.3%
Charles Apolice ratio	25.076	101.170			37.370
Combined ratio	66.2%	81.1%			67.7%

(1) Represents gross premiums ceded from the Insurance segment to the Reinsurance segment.

Three months ended March 31, 2009 (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	Reinsurance	Insurance	Elimin	ations (1)	Other	Total
Gross premiums written	\$ 532,916	\$ 65,149	\$	236	\$	\$ 598,301
Net premiums written	\$ 414,787	\$ 32,049				\$ 446,836

Edgar Filing: RENAISSANCERE HOLDINGS LTD - Form 10-Q

Net premiums earned	\$ 225,971	\$ 75,777		\$ 301,748
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	16,571	69,626		86,197
Acquisition expenses	19,021	25,583		44,604
Operational expenses	29,115	10,642		39,757
II. 1	¢ 161 264	¢ (20.074)		121 100
Underwriting income (loss)	\$ 161,264	\$ (30,074)		131,190
Net investment income			42,126	42,126
Equity in earnings of other ventures			1,736	1,736
Other loss			(14,795)	(14,795)
Interest and preference share dividends			(14,711)	(14,711)
Redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe			(35,475)	(35,475)
Other items, net			(15,891)	(15,891)
Net realized gains on investments			22,126	22,126
Net other-than-temporary impairments			(19,022)	(19,022)
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders			\$ (33,906)	\$ 97,284
	\$ 41,306	\$ 37,629	\$ (33,906)	\$ 97,284 \$ 78,935
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	\$ 41,306 (24,735)	\$ 37,629 31,997	\$ (33,906)	
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year			\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	(24,735) \$ 16,571	31,997 \$ 69,626	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	(24,735) \$ 16,571 18.3%	31,997 \$ 69,626 49.7%	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197 26.2%
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	(24,735) \$ 16,571	31,997 \$ 69,626	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	(24,735) \$ 16,571 18.3%	31,997 \$ 69,626 49.7%	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197 26.2%
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(24,735) \$ 16,571 18.3% (11.0%)	31,997 \$ 69,626 49.7% 42.2%	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197 26.2% 2.4%
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	(24,735) \$ 16,571 18.3% (11.0%) 7.3%	31,997 \$ 69,626 49.7% 42.2% 91.9%	\$ (33,906)	\$ 78,935 7,262 \$ 86,197 26.2% 2.4%

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents gross premiums ceded from the Insurance segment to the Reinsurance segment.

### NOTE 6. INVESTMENTS

Fixed Maturity Investments Available For Sale

The following table summarizes the amortized cost, fair value and related unrealized gains and losses and non-credit other-than-temporary impairments of fixed maturity investments available for sale at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

# Included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Non-Credit

			Gross	Unrealized	d Gros	s Unrealized			Oth	n-Credit er-Than- nporary
At March 31, 2010	An	ortized Cost		Gains		Losses	Fa	air Value	Impai	irments (1)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)										
U.S. treasuries	\$	13,170	\$	591	\$	(10)	\$	13,751	\$	
Agencies		99,792		1,061		(8)		100,845		
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)		115,406		7,877		(274)		123,009		(88)
FDIC guaranteed corporate		447,812		4,583		(56)		452,339		
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate		97,340		1,683		(26)		98,997		
Corporate		282,092		12,930		(1,560)		293,462		(2,393)
Agency mortgage-backed		140,148		3,383		(257)		143,274		
Non-agency mortgage-backed		28,460		2,616		(92)		30,984		(2,323)
Commercial mortgage-backed		174,622		4,830		(929)		178,523		
Asset-backed		48,946		1,327		(296)		49,977		(598)
Total	\$	1,447,788	\$	40,881	\$	(3,508)	\$ 1	,485,161	\$	(5,402)

(1) Represents the non-credit component of other-than-temporary impairments recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income since the adoption of guidance related to the recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments under FASB ASC Topic *Financial Instruments - Debt and Equity Securities*, during the second quarter of 2009, adjusted for subsequent sales of securities. It does not include the change in fair value subsequent to the impairment measurement date.

### Included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

At December 31, 2009	A	nortized Cost	 Unrealize Gains	d Gros	s Unrealized	Fair Value	Oth Te	n-Credit er-Than- mporary irments (1)
·	AII	iortizeu Cost	Gains		Losses	rair value	шра	irments (1)
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)								
U.S. treasuries	\$	599,930	\$ 691	\$	(2,689)	\$ 597,932	\$	
Agencies		164,071	1,627		(121)	165,577		
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)		171,137	8,706		(557)	179,286		(88)
FDIC guaranteed corporate		850,193	6,175		(380)	855,988		
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate		248,888	1,557		(1,699)	248,746		
Corporate		811,304	32,128		(4,556)	838,876		(4,659)
Agency mortgage-backed		289,433	4,521		(1,526)	292,428		
Non-agency mortgage-backed		35,071	1,888		(576)	36,383		(2,949)
Commercial mortgage-backed		253,713	2,183		(4,424)	251,472		
Asset-backed		89,443	3,598		(532)	92,509		(1,531)
Total fixed maturity investments available for sale	\$	3,513,183	\$ 63,074	\$	(17,060)	\$ 3,559,197	\$	(9,227)

(1) Represents the non-credit component of other-than-temporary impairments recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income since the adoption of guidance related to the recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments under FASB ASC Topic Financial Instruments - Debt and Equity Securities, during the second quarter of 2009, adjusted for subsequent sales of securities. It does not include the change in fair value subsequent to the impairment measurement date.

Fixed Maturity Investments Trading

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company started designating, upon acquisition, certain fixed maturity investments as trading, rather than as available for sale. The Company made this change, due in part to the new authoritative other-than-temporary impairment GAAP guidance that became effective on April 1, 2009, which has resulted in additional accounting judgments required to be made on a quarterly basis, combined with an effort to

13

report the Company s fixed maturity investment portfolio results in the Company s consolidated statements of operations in a manner consistent with the way in which the Company manages the portfolio, which is on a total investment return basis. The Company currently expects to continue to designate, in future periods, upon acquisition, certain fixed maturity investments as trading, rather than as available for sale, and, as a result, the Company currently expects its fixed maturity investments available for sale balance to decrease and its fixed maturity trading balance to increase over time, resulting in a reduction in other-than-temporary accounting judgments the Company makes. This change will over time result in additional volatility in the Company s net income (loss) in future periods as net unrealized gains and losses on these fixed maturity investments will be recorded currently in net income (loss), rather than as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders equity.

The following table summarizes the fair value of fixed maturity investments trading at March 31, 2010:

At March 31, 2010	Fair Value
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)	
U.S. treasuries	\$ 1,368,577
Agencies	25,815
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)	84,508
FDIC guaranteed corporate	190,630
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate	271,102
Corporate	1,019,094
Agency mortgage-backed	89,609
Total fixed maturity investments trading, at fair value	\$ 3,049,335

Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments include net unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments trading of \$4.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010.

Contractual maturities of fixed maturity investments are as follows. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

At March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Amo	Available rtized Cost			Amo	Trad rtized Cost	-	ir Value	al Fixed Mat ortized Cost	Investments Fair Value
Due in less than one year	\$	76,178	\$	77,613	\$	1,995	\$	1,999	\$ 78,173	\$ 79,612
Due after one through five years		800,930		817,356	2	,265,579	2,	,261,336	3,066,509	3,078,692
Due after five through ten years		151,605		157,954		633,774		628,137	785,379	786,091
Due after ten years		26,898		29,480		68,868		68,254	95,766	97,734
Mortgage-backed		343,231		352,781		90,297		89,609	433,528	442,390
Asset-backed		48,946		49,977					48,946	49,977
Total	\$ 1	,447,788	\$ 1,	485,161	\$3	,060,513	\$ 3,	,049,335	\$ 4,508,301	\$ 4,534,496

Net Investment Income

The components of net investment income are as follows:

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	2010	2009
Fixed maturity investments	\$ 28,643	\$ 39,127
Short term investments	2,284	3,071
Other investments		
Hedge funds and private equity investments	17,536	(19,741)
Other	21,218	21,821
Cash and cash equivalents	66	373
	69,747	44,651
Investment expenses	(2,566)	(2,525)
Net investment income	\$ 67,181	\$ 42,126

Net realized gains on the sale of investments are determined on the basis of the first in first out cost method and for fixed maturity investments available for sale include adjustments to the cost basis of investments for declines in value that are considered to be other-than-temporary. During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company started designating upon acquisition, certain fixed maturity investments as trading. As a result, unrealized gains (losses) on fixed maturity investments designated as trading, are recorded in net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on the Company s consolidated statement of operations. Unrealized gains (losses) on the Company s fixed maturity investments available for sale, are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income on the Company s consolidated balance sheet. The Company s net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments and net other-than-temporary impairments are as follows:

Three months ended March 31,	2010	2009
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)		
Gross realized gains	\$ 48,887	\$ 31,423
Gross realized losses	(5,170)	(9,297)
Net realized gains on fixed maturity investments	43,717	22,126
Net unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments, trading	4,881	
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments	\$ 48,598	\$ 22,126
Total other-than-temporary impairments	(33)	(19,022)
Portion recognized in other comprehensive income, before taxes		
Net other-than-temporary impairments	\$ (33)	\$ (19,022)

The following table provides an analysis of the length of time the Company s fixed maturity investments available for sale in an unrealized loss have been in a continual unrealized loss position.

At March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Less than Fair Value	Un	Aonths realized Losses	12 Months Fair Value	or Greater Unrealized Losses	To Fair Value	 realized Losses
U.S. treasuries	\$ 2,058	\$	(10)	\$	\$	\$ 2,058	\$ (10)
Agencies	2,997		(8)			2,997	(8)
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)	11,966		(265)	111	(9)	12,077	(274)
FDIC guaranteed corporate	60,625		(56)			60,625	(56)
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate	6,360		(26)			6,360	(26)
Corporate	71,881		(1,322)	2,829	(238)	74,710	(1,560)
Agency mortgage-backed	50,898		(257)			50,898	(257)
Non-agency mortgage-backed	435		(14)	1,394	(78)	1,829	(92)
Commercial mortgage-backed	13,227		(259)	14,028	(670)	27,255	(929)
Asset-backed				7,918	(296)	7,918	(296)
Total	\$ 220,447	\$	(2,217)	\$ 26,280	\$ (1,291)	\$ 246,727	\$ (3,508)

At December 31, 2009 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Less than 1 Fair Value	2 Months Unrealized Losses	12 Months Fair Value	or Greater Unrealized Losses	Tot Fair Value	al Unrealized Losses
U.S. treasuries	\$ 551,203	\$ (2,689)	\$	\$	\$ 551,203	\$ (2,689)
Agencies	75,537	(121)			75,537	(121)
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)	39,119	(540)	209	(17)	39,328	(557)
FDIC guaranteed corporate	156,989	(380)			156,989	(380)
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate	106,971	(1,699)			106,971	(1,699)
Corporate	253,828	(4,069)	7,893	(487)	261,721	(4,556)
Agency mortgage-backed	156,288	(1,348)	3,818	(178)	160,106	(1,526)
Non-agency mortgage-backed	2,558	(54)	9,120	(522)	11,678	(576)
Commercial mortgage-backed	77,796	(1,089)	32,184	(3,335)	109,980	(4,424)
Asset-backed	4,605	(18)	14,407	(514)	19,012	(532)
Total	\$ 1,424,894	\$ (12,007)	\$ 67,631	\$ (5,053)	\$ 1,492,525	\$ (17,060)

At March 31, 2010, the Company held 42 fixed maturity investments available for sale securities that were in an unrealized loss position for twelve months or greater and does not intend to sell these securities and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell these securities before the anticipated recovery of the remaining amortized cost basis. The Company performed reviews of its investments for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, in order to determine whether declines in the fair value below the amortized cost basis of its fixed maturity investments available for sale were considered other-than-temporary in accordance with the applicable guidance, as discussed below.

At March 31, 2010, \$1.4 billion of cash and investments at fair value were on deposit with, or in trust accounts for the benefit of various counterparties, including with respect to the Company s principal letter of credit facility. Of this amount, \$59.4 million are on deposit, or in trust accounts for the benefit of U.S. state regulatory authorities.

### Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Process Prior to April 1, 2009

Under the pre-existing guidance, which was in effect for the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company assessed, on a quarterly basis, whether declines in the fair value of its fixed maturity investments available for sale represented impairments that were other-than-temporary

based on several factors. The factors the Company considered in the assessment of a security included: (i) the time period during which there had been a significant decline below cost; (ii) the extent of the decline below cost; (iii) the Company s intent and ability to hold the security; (iv) the potential for the security to recover in value; (v) an analysis of the financial condition of the issuer; and (vi) an analysis of the collateral structure and credit support of the security, if applicable. Where the Company determined that there was an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of the security, the cost of the security was written down to its fair value and the unrealized loss at the time of determination was reflected in the Company s consolidated statements of operations.

16

The majority of the Company s fixed maturity investments available for sale are managed by external investment managers in accordance with specific investment mandates and guidelines. The investment managers are directed to manage the Company s investments to maximize total investment return in accordance with these investment mandates and guidelines. While the Company has adequate capital and liquidity to support its operations and to hold its fixed maturity investments available for sale which were in an unrealized loss position until they recover in value, the Company has not prohibited or restricted its investment managers from selling these investments and its investment managers actively traded the Company s investments. The Company was therefore unable to represent or certify that it had the intent or ability to hold these investments until they recovered in value. As a consequence, under the pre-existing guidance, the Company impaired essentially all of its fixed maturity investments available for sale that were in an unrealized loss position at each quarterly reporting date. For the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company recorded other-than-temporary impairments of \$19.0 million. As of March 31, 2009, the Company had essentially no fixed maturity investments available for sale in an unrealized loss position.

### Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Process Effective April 1, 2009

Pursuant to the guidance effective April 1, 2009, the Company revised its quarterly process for assessing whether declines in the fair value of its fixed maturity investments available for sale represent impairments that are other-than-temporary. The process now includes reviewing each fixed maturity investment available for sale that is impaired and determining: (i) if the Company has the intent to sell the debt security or (ii) if it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery; and (iii) assessing whether a credit loss exists, that is, where the Company expects that the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected from the security are less than the amortized cost basis of the security.

In assessing the Company s intent to sell securities, the Company s procedures may include actions such as discussing planned sales with its third party investment managers, reviewing sales that have occurred shortly after the balance sheet date, and consideration of other qualitative factors that may be indicative of the Company s intent to sell or hold the relevant securities. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recognized \$nil, of other-than-temporary impairments due to the Company s intent to sell these securities as of March 31, 2010.

In assessing whether it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell a security before its anticipated recovery, the Company considers various factors including its future cash flow forecasts and requirements, legal and regulatory requirements, the level of its cash, cash equivalents, short term investments, fixed maturity investments trading and fixed maturity investments available for sale in an unrealized gain position, and other relevant factors. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recognized \$nil of other-than-temporary impairments due to required sales.

In evaluating credit losses, the Company considers a variety of factors in the assessment of a security including: (i) the time period during which there has been a significant decline below cost; (ii) the extent of the decline below cost and par; (iii) the potential for the security to recover in value; (iv) an analysis of the financial condition of the issuer; (v) the rating of the issuer; (vi) the implied rating of the issuer based on an analysis of option adjusted spreads; (vii) the absolute level of the option adjusted spread for the issuer; and (viii) an analysis of the collateral structure and credit support of the security, if applicable.

Once the Company determines that it is possible that a credit loss may exist for a security, the Company performs a detailed review of the cash flows expected to be collected from the issuer. The Company estimates expected cash flows by applying estimated default probabilities and recovery rates to the contractual cash flows of the issuer, with such default and recovery rates reflecting long-term historical averages adjusted to reflect current credit, economic and market conditions, giving due consideration to collateral and credit support, if applicable, and discounting the expected cash flows at the purchase yield on the security. In instances in which a determination is made that an impairment exists but the Company does not intend to sell the security and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before the anticipated recovery of its remaining amortized cost basis, the impairment is separated into: (i) the amount of the total other-than-temporary impairment related to the credit loss; and (ii) the amount of the total other-than-temporary impairment related to all other factors. The amount of the other-than-temporary impairment related to the credit loss is recognized in earnings. The amount of the other-than-temporary impairment related to all other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recognized \$33 thousand of credit related other-than-temporary impairments which were recognized in earnings and \$nil related to other factors.

Table of Contents

27

Three months ended March 31 2010

The following table provides a rollforward of the amount of other-than-temporary impairments related to credit losses recognized in earnings for which a portion of an other-than-temporary impairment was recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

Three months ended warch 51, 2010	
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)	
Balance - January 1	\$ 9,987
Additions:	
Amount related to credit loss for which an other-than-temporary impairment was not previously recognized	
Amount related to credit loss for which an other-than-temporary impairment was previously recognized	31
Reductions:	
Securities sold during the period	(5,954)
Securities for which the amount previously recognized in other comprehensive income was recognized in earnings, because the	
Company intends to sell the security or is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell the security	

Balance - March 31 \$ 4.064

Increases in cash flows expected to be collected that are recognized over the remaining life of the security

### NOTE 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The use of fair value to measure certain assets and liabilities with resulting unrealized gains or losses is pervasive within the Company s financial statements, and is a critical accounting policy and estimate for the Company. Fair value is defined under accounting guidance currently applicable to the Company to be the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between open market participants at the measurement date. The Company recognizes the change in unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value in its consolidated statements of operations, with the exception of changes in unrealized gains and losses on its fixed maturity investments available for sale, which are recognized as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders equity.

FASB ASC Topic *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures* prescribes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to the respective valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize unadjusted quoted prices obtained from active markets for identical assets or liabilities for which the Company has access. The fair value is determined by multiplying the quoted price by the quantity held by the Company;

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals, broker quotes and certain pricing indices; and

18

### **Table of Contents**

Level 3 inputs are based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. In these cases, significant management assumptions can be used to establish management s best estimate of the assumptions used by other market participants in determining the fair value of the asset or liability.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the asset or liability. The Company s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and the Company considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

In order to determine if a market is active or inactive for a security, the Company considers a number of factors, including, but not limited to, the spread between what a seller is asking for a security and what a buyer is bidding for the same security, the volume of trading activity for the security in question, the price of the security compared to its par value (for fixed maturity investments), and other factors that may be indicative of market activity. There have been no material changes in the Company s valuation techniques in the period represented by these consolidated financial statements.

19

Below is a summary of the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and also represents the carrying amount on the Company s consolidated balance sheet:

At March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Total	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)		Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)		Une	ignificant observable Inputs Level 3)
Fixed maturity investments							
U.S. treasuries	\$ 1,382,328	\$	1,382,328	\$		\$	
Agencies	126,660				126,660		
Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)	207,517				207,517		
FDIC guaranteed corporate	642,969				642,969		
Non-U.S. government-backed corporate	370,099				370,099		
Corporate	1,312,556				1,312,556		
Agency mortgage-backed	232,883				232,883		
Non-agency mortgage-backed	30,984				30,984		
Commercial mortgage-backed	178,523				178,523		
Asset-backed	49,977				49,977		
Total fixed maturity investments	4,534,496		1,382,328		3,152,168		
Short term investments	864,328		1,302,320		864,328		
Other investments	001,520				001,320		
Private equity partnerships	292,412						292,412
Senior secured bank loan funds	253,652				153.002		100,650
Catastrophe bonds	156,973				156,647		326
Non-U.S. fixed income funds	75,533				75,533		320
Hedge funds	56,475				56,475		
Miscellaneous other investments	31,820				31,820		
Miscerialicous other investments	31,020				31,020		
Total other investments	866,865				473,477		393,388
Other secured assets	27,651				27,651		
Other assets and (liabilities)							
Platinum warrants	31,174				31,174		
Weather and energy risk management operations	(4,644)		3,832				(8,476)
Assumed and ceded (re)insurance contracts	(1,094)						(1,094)
Derivatives	3,682		4,458		(776)		
Other	15,626		(775)		,		16,401
Total other assets and (liabilities)	44,744		7,515		30,398		6,831
Total other assets and (natifices)	77,744		7,515		30,390		0,031
	\$ 6,338,084	\$	1,389,843	\$	4,548,022	\$	400,219

### Fixed Maturity Investments

Fixed maturity investments included in Level 1 consist of the Company s investments in U.S. treasuries. Fixed maturity investments included in Level 2 are U.S. agencies, non-U.S. government, corporate, FDIC guaranteed corporate, non-U.S. government-backed corporate, agency mortgage-backed, mortgage-backed and asset-backed fixed maturity investments.

The Company s fixed maturity investments portfolios are priced using broker quotations and pricing services, such as index providers and pricing vendors. The pricing vendors provide pricing for a high volume of liquid securities that are actively traded. For securities that do not trade on an exchange, the pricing services generally utilize market data and other observable inputs in matrix pricing models to determine prices. Prices are generally verified using third party data. Prices obtained from broker quotations are considered non-binding, however they are based on

observable inputs and by observing secondary trading of similar securities obtained from active, non-distressed markets. The Company considers these Level 2 inputs as they are corroborated with other externally obtained information. The techniques generally used to determine the fair value of our fixed maturity investments are detailed below by asset class.

### U.S. treasuries

At March 31, 2010, the Company s U.S. treasuries fixed maturity investments had a weighted average yield to maturity of 1.9%, a weighted average credit quality of AAA, and are primarily priced by pricing vendors. When pricing these securities, the vendor may utilize daily data from many real time market sources, including active broker dealers, as such, the Company considers its U.S. treasuries fixed maturity investments Level 1. All data sources are constantly reviewed for accuracy to ensure the most reliable price source is used for each issue and maturity date.

20

### **Agencies**

At March 31, 2010, the Company s agencies fixed maturity investments had a weighted average yield to maturity of 1.3% and a weighted average credit quality of AAA. The issuers of the Company s agencies fixed maturity investments primarily consist of the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and other agencies. Fixed maturity investments included in agencies, are primarily priced by pricing vendors. When evaluating these securities, the vendor may gather information from market sources and integrate other observations from markets and sector news. Evaluations are updated by obtaining broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, when available. The dollar value for each security is individually computed using analytical models which incorporate option adjusted spreads and other daily interest rate data. The Company considers its agencies fixed maturity investments Level 2.

### Non-U.S. government (Sovereign debt)

Non-U.S. government fixed maturity investments held by the Company at March 31, 2010, had a weighted average yield to maturity of 3.5% and a weighted average credit quality of AA. The issuers for securities in this sector are generally non-U.S. governments and agencies as well as supranational organizations. Securities held in these sectors, are primarily priced by pricing vendors who employ proprietary discounted cash flow models to value the securities. Key quantitative inputs for these models are daily observed benchmark curves for treasury, swap and high issuance credits. The pricing vendor may then apply a credit spread for each security which is developed by in-depth and real time market analysis. For securities in which trade volume is low, the pricing vendor may also utilize data from more frequently traded securities with similar attributes. These models may also be supplemented by daily market and credit research for international markets. The Company considers its non-U.S. government fixed maturity investments Level 2.

### FDIC guaranteed corporate

The Company s FDIC guaranteed corporate fixed maturity investments had a weighted average yield to maturity of 1.1% and a weighted average credit quality of AAA at March 31, 2010. The issuers consist of well known corporate issuers who participate in the FDIC program. The Company s FDIC guaranteed corporate fixed maturity investments, are primarily priced by pricing vendors. When evaluating these securities, the vendor may gather information from market sources regarding the issuer of the security, obtain credit data, as well as other observations from markets and sector news. Evaluations are updated by obtaining broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, when available. The pricing vendor may also consider the specific terms and conditions of the securities, including any specific features which may influence risk. Each security is individually evaluated using a spread model which is added to the U.S. treasury curve or LIBOR. The Company considers its FDIC guaranteed corporate fixed maturity investments Level 2.

### Non-U.S. government-backed corporate

Non-U.S. government-backed corporate fixed maturity investments are considered Level 2 by the Company and had a weighted average yield to maturity of 2.0% and a weighted average credit quality of AAA at March 31, 2010. Non-U.S. government-backed fixed maturity investments are primarily priced by pricing vendors who employ proprietary discounted cash flow models to value the securities. Key quantitative inputs for these models are daily observed benchmark curves for treasury, swap and high issuance credits. The pricing vendor may then apply a credit spread for each security which is developed by in-depth and real time market analysis. For securities in which trade volume is low, the pricing vendor may also utilize data from more frequently traded securities with similar attributes. These models may also be supplemented by daily market and credit research for international markets.

21

### Corporate

At March 31, 2010, the Company s corporate fixed maturity investments had a weighted average yield to maturity of 3.4% and a weighted average credit quality of A, and principally consist of U.S. and international corporations. The Company s corporate fixed maturity investments are primarily priced by pricing vendors, and are considered Level 2 by the Company. When evaluating these securities, the vendor may gather information from market sources regarding the issuer of the security, obtain credit data, as well as other observations from markets and sector news. Evaluations are updated by obtaining broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, when available. The pricing vendor may also consider the specific terms and conditions of the securities, including any specific features which may influence risk. Each security is individually evaluated using a spread model which is added to the U.S. treasury curve or LIBOR.

### Agency mortgage-backed

At March 31, 2010, the Company s agency mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments included agency residential mortgage-backed securities with a weighted average yield to maturity of 3.1%, a weighted average credit quality of AAA and a weighted average life of 4.0 years. The majority of the Company s agency mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments held at March 31, 2010 are from vintage years 2009 and prior. The Company s agency mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments are primarily priced by pricing vendors using a mortgage pool specific model which utilizes daily inputs from the active TBA market which is extremely liquid, as well as the U.S. treasury market and LIBOR. The vendor model may also utilize additional information, such as the weighted average maturity, weighted average coupon and other available pool level data which is provided by the sponsoring agency. Valuations may also be corroborated by daily active market quotes. The Company considers its agency mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments Level 2.

### Non-agency mortgage-backed

The Company s non-agency mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments include non-agency prime residential mortgage-backed and non-agency Alt-A fixed maturity investments, and considers these fixed maturity investments Level 2. The Company has no fixed maturity investments classified as sub-prime held in its fixed maturity investments portfolio. At March 31, 2010, the Company s non-agency prime residential mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments have a weighted average yield to maturity of 5.2%, a weighted average credit quality of AA and a weighted average life of 4.3 years. The Company s non-agency Alt-A fixed maturity investments held at March 31, 2010, have a weighted average yield to maturity of 8.6%, a weighted average credit quality of AA, a weighted average life of 3.9 years, and are from vintage years 2005 and prior. Securities held in these sectors, are primarily priced by pricing vendors using a mortgage pool specific model which utilizes daily inputs from the active TBA market which is extremely liquid, as well as the U.S. treasury market and LIBOR. The vendor model may also utilize additional information, such as the weighted average maturity, weighted average coupon and other available pool level data which is provided by the sponsoring agency. Valuations may also be corroborated by daily active market quotes.

### Commercial mortgage-backed

The Company s commercial mortgage-backed fixed maturity investments held at March 31, 2010 have a weighted average yield to maturity of 3.7%, a weighted average credit quality of AA and a weighted average life of 3.8 years, and the majority of the securities held are from vintage years 2007 and prior. Securities held in these sectors, are primarily priced by pricing vendors and are considered Level 2 by the Company. The pricing vendor may apply dealer quotes and other available trade information such as bid and offers, prepayment speeds which may be adjusted for the underlying collateral or current price data, the U.S. treasury curve, swap curve and TBA values as well as cash settlement. The model utilizes a single cash flow stream and computes both a yield to call and weighted average yield to maturity. The model generates a derived price for the bond by applying the most likely scenario.

22

### **Table of Contents**

### Asset-backed

At March 31, 2010, the Company s asset-backed fixed maturity investments had a weighted average yield to maturity of 1.6%, a weighted average credit quality of AAA and a weighted average life of 3.6 years. The underlying collateral for the Company s asset-backed fixed maturity investments primarily consists of student loans, automobile loans and credit card receivables. Securities held in these sectors, are primarily priced by pricing vendors and are considered Level 2 by the Company. The pricing vendor may apply dealer quotes and other available trade information such as bid and offers, prepayment speeds which may be adjusted for the underlying collateral or current price data, the U.S. treasury curve, swap curve and TBA values as well as cash settlement. The model utilizes a single cash flow stream and computes both a yield to call and weighted average yield to maturity. The model generates a derived price for the bond by applying the most likely scenario.

Short term investments

Short term investments are considered Level 2 and fair values are generally determined using amortized cost which approximates fair value and, in certain cases, in a manner similar to the Company s fixed maturity investments noted above.

Other Investments

### Private equity partnerships

Included in the Company s investments in private equity partnerships at March 31, 2010 are alternative asset limited partnerships that invest in certain private equity asset classes including U.S. and global leveraged buyouts; mezzanine investments; distressed securities; real estate; oil, gas and power; and secondaries. The fair value of private equity partnership investments is based on net asset values obtained from the investment manager or general partner of the respective entity. The type of underlying investments held by the investee which form the basis of the net asset valuation include assets such as private business ventures, for which the Company does not have access to, and as a result, is unable to corroborate the fair value measurement and therefore requires significant management judgment to determine the underlying value of the private equity partnership and accordingly the fair value of the Company s investment in each private equity partnership is considered Level 3. The Company also considers factors such as recent financial information, the value of capital transactions with the partnership and management s judgment regarding whether any adjustments should be made to the net asset value. The Company regularly reviews the performance of its private equity partnerships directly with the fund managers.

### Senior secured bank loan funds

At March 31, 2010, the Company s investments in senior secured bank loan funds include funds that invest primarily in bank loans and other senior debt instruments. The fair values of the Company s senior secured bank loan funds are estimated using the net asset value per share of the funds. Investments of \$153.0 million are redeemable, in whole or in part, on a monthly basis, and are valued at the net asset value of the fund and are considered Level 2. In addition, the Company has a \$100.7 million investment in a bank loan fund for which it has no right to redeem its investment in advance of dissolution of the fund. Instead, the nature of this investment is that distributions are received by the Company in connection with the liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund. The Company s investment in this bank loan fund is valued using monthly net asset valuations received from the investment manager. The underlying investments in this bank loan fund are relatively liquid and prices can be obtained on a daily basis. However, the lock up provisions in this fund result in a lack of current observable market transactions between the fund participants and the fund, and therefore, the Company considers the fair value of its investment in this fund to be determined using Level 3 inputs.

### Catastrophe bonds

The Company s other investments include investments in catastrophe bonds which are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices, or when such prices are not available, by reference to broker or underwriter bid indications. As such, the Company considers its catastrophe bonds Level 2.

23

### **Table of Contents**

### Non-U.S. fixed income funds

The Company considers its investments in non-U.S. fixed income funds Level 2. The Company s non-U.S. fixed income funds invest primarily in European high yield bonds, non-U.S. convertible securities and high income convertible securities. The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments which are provided by third parties such as the relevant investment manager or administrator, recent financial information issued by the applicable investee entity or available market data to estimate fair value.

#### Hedge funds

The Company invests in hedge funds that pursue multiple strategies without limiting itself to a predefined strategy or set of strategies. The strategies employed include, among others, the following: fundamentally driven long/short; event oriented; credit, distressed credit and structured credit investments and arbitrage; capital structure arbitrage; and private investments. At March 31, 2010, the fair values of the Company s hedge funds have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments which are provided by third parties such as the relevant investment manager or administrator, recent financial information issued by the applicable investee entity or available market data to estimate fair value. The Company considers its hedge fund investments Level 2.

### Other secured assets

Other secured assets represent contractual rights under a purchase agreement, contingent purchase agreement and credit derivatives agreement with a major bank to sell certain securities within the Company s catastrophe-linked securities portfolio. The Company s other secured assets are accounted for at fair value based on quoted market prices, or when such prices are not available, by reference to broker or underwriter bid indications. As such, the Company considers its catastrophe bonds Level 2.

### Other assets and liabilities

Included in other assets and liabilities measured at fair value is the Company s investment in a warrant to purchase 2.5 million common shares of Platinum, estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which the Company has considered Level 2 as the inputs to the option pricing model are based on observable market inputs. Other assets and liabilities also include the Company s weather and energy risk management operations, which principally includes certain derivative-based risk management products primarily to address weather and energy risks, and hedging and trading activities related to these risks. The trading markets for these derivatives are generally linked to energy and agriculture commodities, weather and other natural phenomena and the fair value of these contracts is obtained through the use of exchange traded market prices, or in the absence of such market prices, industry or internal valuation models, as such, these products are considered Level 1 and Level 3, respectively. The Company considers assumed and ceded (re)insurance contracts accounted for at fair value as Level 3, as the fair value of these contracts is obtained through the use of internal valuation models with the inputs to the internal valuation model based on proprietary data as observable market inputs are not available. In addition, other assets and liabilities include certain other derivatives entered into by the Company, the fair value of these transactions include certain exchange traded foreign currency forward contracts which are considered Level 1, and the fair value of certain credit derivatives, determined using industry valuation models and considered Level 2, as the inputs to the valuation model are based on observable market inputs.

24

Below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances, for the periods shown, of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs. Interest and dividend income are included in net investment income and are excluded from the reconciliation.

	Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)								
Three months ended March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Other investments		r assets and abilities)	Total					
Balance January 1	\$ 393,913	\$	3,567	\$ 397,480					
Total net unrealized gains (losses)									
Included in net investment income	8,891			8,891					
Included in other loss			(10,136)	(10,136)					
Total net realized gains									
Included in net investment income									
Included in other loss			7,615	7,615					
Total net foreign exchange losses	(2,215)		(484)	(2,699)					
Net purchases, issuances, and settlements	(7,201)		6,269	(932)					
Net transfers in and/or out of Level 3				, ,					
Balance March 31, 2010	\$ 393,388	\$	6,831	\$ 400,219					

Reinsurance Contracts Accounted for at Fair Value

The Company assumes and cedes certain reinsurance contracts that are accounted for at fair value under the fair value election option. The fair value of these contracts is obtained through the use of internal valuation models. These contracts are recorded on the Company s balance sheet in other assets and other liabilities and totaled \$1.2 million and \$0.7 million, respectively, at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$2.2 million and \$nil, respectively). During the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded losses of \$1.4 million which are included in other loss and represent changes in the fair value of these contracts (March 31, 2009 \$0.8 million).

Insurance Contracts Accounted for at Fair Value

The Company assumes certain insurance contracts that are accounted for at fair value under the fair value election option. The fair value of these contracts is obtained through the use of internal valuation models. These contracts are recorded on the Company s balance sheet in other liabilities and totaled \$1.6 million at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$14.0 million). During the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded unrealized losses of \$1.2 million (March 31, 2009 unrealized gains of \$0.1 million), and realized gains of \$1.9 million (March 31, 2009 realized losses of \$30 thousand) which are included in other loss and represent changes in the fair value and realized gains of these contracts.

Weather and Energy Transactions Accounted for at Fair Value

Through the business conducted by Renaissance Trading on a regular basis and otherwise from time to time, the Company enters into certain weather and energy insurance type contracts through its trading activities that it has elected to account for at fair value under the fair value election option. These contracts are recorded on the Company s balance sheet in other assets and totaled \$nil million at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$0.5 million). During the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded unrealized losses of \$3.0 million, which are included in other loss and represent changes in the fair value of these contracts (March 31, 2009 \$nil).

25

#### **Table of Contents**

Senior Notes

In January 2003, RenaissanceRe issued \$100.0 million, which represents the carrying amount on the Company s consolidated balance sheet, of 5.875% Senior Notes due February 15, 2013, with interest on the notes payable on February 15 and August 15 of each year. The notes can be redeemed by RenaissanceRe prior to maturity subject to payment of a make-whole premium. The notes, which are senior obligations, contain various covenants, including limitations on mergers and consolidations, restrictions as to the disposition of the stock of designated subsidiaries and limitations on liens of the stock of designated subsidiaries. At March 31, 2010, the fair value of the 5.875% Senior Notes was \$104.8 million (December 31, 2009 \$103.7 million).

In March 2010, RenRe North America Holdings Inc. (RRNAH) issued \$250.0 million of 5.750% Senior Notes due March 15, 2020, with interest on the notes payable on March 15 and September 15 of each year. The notes are guaranteed by RenaissanceRe and can be redeemed by RRNAH prior to maturity subject to payment of a make-whole premium. The notes, which are senior obligations, contain various covenants, including limitations on mergers and consolidations, restrictions as to the disposition of the stock of designated subsidiaries and limitations on liens of the stock of designated subsidiaries. At March 31, 2010, the fair value of the 5.750% Senior Notes was \$247.5 million.

The fair value of RenaissanceRe s 5.875% Senior Notes and RRNAH s 5.750% Senior Notes is determined using indicative market pricing obtained from third-party service providers.

The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Company has elected to account for certain assets and liabilities at fair value under FASB ASC Topic *Financial Instruments*. The Company has elected to use the guidance under FASB ASC Topic *Financial Instruments*, as it represents the most current authoritative GAAP. Below is a summary of the balances the Company has elected to account for at fair value:

	March 31,	December 31,
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)	2010	2009
Other investments	\$ 866,865	\$ 858,026
Other secured assets	27,651	27,730
Other assets and (liabilities) (1)	\$ 6,831	\$ 9,102

(1) Balance at March 31, 2010 includes \$17.6 million of other assets and \$10.8 million of other liabilities. Balance at December 31, 2009 includes \$22.6 million of other assets and \$13.5 million of other liabilities.

Included in net investment income for the three months ended March 31, 2010 is \$24.9 million of net unrealized gains related to the changes in fair value of other investments (March 31, 2009 \$17.0 million of net unrealized losses). Net unrealized losses related to the changes in the fair value of other secured assets and other assets and liabilities recorded in other loss was \$0.1 million and \$10.1 million, respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2010 (March 31, 2009 net unrealized (losses) gains of \$(0.1) million and \$0.1 million, respectively).

26

Measuring the Fair Value of Other Investments Using Net Asset Valuations

The table below shows the Company s portfolio of other investments measured using net asset valuations:

At March 31, 2010 (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Fair Value	Unfunded Commitments		Redemption Frequency	Redemption Notice Period
Private equity partnerships	\$ 292,412	\$	176,861	See below	See below
Senior secured bank loan funds	253,652			See below	See below
Non-U.S. fixed income funds	75,533			Monthly, bi-monthly	5 - 20 days
Hedge funds	56,475			Annually, bi-annually	45 - 90 days
Total other investments measured using net asset valuations	\$ 678,072	\$	176,861		

*Private equity partnerships* Included in the Company's investments in private equity partnerships are alternative asset limited partnerships that invest in certain private equity asset classes including U.S. and global leveraged buyouts; mezzanine investments; distressed securities; real estate; oil, gas and power; and secondaries. The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. The Company generally has no right to redeem its interest in any of these private equity partnerships in advance of dissolution of the applicable partnership. Instead, the nature of these investments is that distributions are received by the Company in connection with the liquidation of the underlying assets of the applicable limited partnership. If these investments were held, it is estimated that the majority of the underlying assets of the limited partnerships would liquidate over 7 to 10 years.

Senior secured bank loan funds The Company s investment in senior secured bank loan funds includes funds that invest primarily in bank loans and other senior debt instruments. The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the funds. Investments of \$153.0 million are redeemable, in whole or in part, on a monthly basis. Currently, the Company generally has no right to redeem its remaining \$100.7 million investment in bank loan funds in advance of dissolution of the applicable funds. Instead, the nature of these investments is that distributions are received by the Company in connection with the liquidation of the underlying assets of the applicable fund. If these investments were held, it is estimated that the majority of the underlying assets of the funds would liquidate over 6 to 8 years. It is the Company s understanding that the management of the senior secured bank loan funds which currently cannot generally be redeemed has restructured these investments during 2010, to a fund structure which would liquidate in the near term, and the Company has elected to transfer its investment to the new fund structure, although such transfer has not yet taken place.

Non-U.S. fixed income funds The Company s non-U.S. fixed income funds invest primarily in European high yield bonds, non-U.S. convertible securities and high income convertible securities. The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. Investments of \$44.4 million are redeemable, in whole or in part, on a bi-monthly basis. The remaining \$31.1 million can generally only be redeemed by the Company at a rate of 10% per month. These investments may permit redemptions which exceed this amount, but they are not obliged to do so.

Hedge funds The Company invests in hedge funds that pursue multiple strategies without limiting itself to a pre-defined strategy or set of strategies. The strategies employed include, among others, the following: fundamentally driven long/short; event oriented; credit, distressed credit and structured credit investments and arbitrage; capital structure arbitrage; and private investments. The fair values of the investments in this category have been estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments. Included in the Company s hedge fund investments is \$10.4 million of so called side pocket investments which are not redeemable at the option of the shareholder. As to each investment in a hedge fund that includes side pocket investments, if the investment is otherwise fully redeemed, the Company will still retain its interest in the side pocket investments until the underlying investments attributable to such side pockets are liquidated, realized or deemed realized at the discretion of the fund manager.

#### NOTE 8. REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

In October 2001, the Company formed DaVinciRe and DaVinci with other equity investors. RenaissanceRe owns a noncontrolling economic interest in DaVinciRe; however, because RenaissanceRe controls a majority of DaVinciRe s outstanding voting rights, the consolidated financial statements of DaVinciRe are included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The portion of DaVinciRe s earnings owned by third parties for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations as redeemable noncontrolling interest.

DaVinciRe shareholders agreement (the Shareholders Agreement ) which provides DaVinciRe shareholders, excluding RenaissanceRe, with certain redemption rights that enable each shareholder to notify DaVinciRe of such shareholder s desire for DaVinciRe to repurchase up to half of such shareholder s initial aggregate number of shares held, subject to certain limitations, such as limiting the aggregate of all share repurchase requests to 25% of DaVinciRe s capital in any given year and satisfying all applicable regulatory requirements. If total shareholder requests exceed 25% of DaVinciRe s capital, the number of shares repurchased will be reduced among the requesting shareholders pro-rata, based on the amounts desired to be repurchased. Shareholders desiring to have DaVinci repurchase their shares must notify DaVinciRe before March 1 of each year. The repurchase price will be based on GAAP book value as of the end of the year in which the shareholder notice is given, and the repurchase will be effective as of such date. Payment will be made by April 1 of the following year, following delivery of the audited financial statements for the year in which the repurchase was effective. The repurchase price is subject to a true-up for development on outstanding loss reserves after settlement of all claims relating to the applicable years. RenaissanceRe s ownership in DaVinciRe was 41.2% at March 31, 2010 (March 31, 2009 38.2%).

Certain third party shareholders of DaVinciRe submitted repurchase notices on or before the required annual redemption notice date of March 1, 2010, in accordance with the third amended and restated shareholders agreement, which provides shareholders, excluding RenaissanceRe, with certain redemption rights such as allowing each shareholder to notify DaVinciRe of such shareholder s desire for DaVinciRe to repurchase up to half of their initial aggregate number of shares held, subject to certain limitations. The repurchase notices submitted on or before March 1, 2010, were for shares of DaVinciRe with a GAAP book value of \$76.9 million at March 31, 2010.

The Company expects its ownership in DaVinciRe to fluctuate over time.

The activity in the Company s redeemable noncontrolling interest DaVinciRe is detailed in the table below for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

	Redee	mable
	noncon	trolling
	inter	est -
	DaVi	nciRe
Three months ended March 31,	2010	2009
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)		
Balance - January 1	\$ 786,647	\$ 768,531
Net purchase of shares from redeemable noncontrolling interest	(140,410)	(152,728)
Comprehensive income:		
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest	10,550	35,475
Other comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest	1,738	(515)
Balance - March 31	\$ 658,525	\$ 650,763

#### NOTE 9. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into derivative instruments such as futures, options, swaps, forward contracts and other derivative contracts in order to manage its foreign currency exposure, obtain exposure to a particular financial market, for yield enhancement, or for trading and speculation. The Company accounts for its derivatives in accordance with FASB ASC Topic *Derivatives and Hedging*, which requires all derivatives to be recorded at fair value on the Company s balance sheet as either assets or liabilities, depending on the rights or obligations of the derivatives, with changes in fair value reflected in current earnings. The Company does not currently apply hedge accounting in respect of any positions reflected in its consolidated financial statements. The fair value of the Company s derivatives are estimated by reference to quoted prices or broker quotes, where available, or in the absence of quoted prices or broker quotes, the use of industry or internal valuation models. Where the Company has entered into master netting agreements with counterparties, or the Company has the legal and contractual right to offset positions, the derivative positions are generally netted by counterparty and are reported accordingly in other assets and other liabilities.

The Company s guidelines permit investments in derivative instruments such as futures, forward contracts, options, swap agreements and other derivative contracts which may be used to assume risk or for hedging purposes. The Company principally has exposure to derivatives related to the following types of risks: interest rate risk; foreign currency risk; credit risk; energy and weather-related risk; and equity price risk.

## **Interest Rate Futures**

The Company uses interest rate futures within its portfolio of fixed maturity investments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk, which can include increasing or decreasing its exposure to this risk. At March 31, 2010, the Company had \$601.3 million of notional long positions and \$118.6 million of notional short positions of primarily Eurodollar and U.S. Treasury and non-U.S. dollar futures contracts. The fair value of these derivatives as recognized in other assets and liabilities in its consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2010, was \$42 thousand and \$0.3 million, respectively (December 31, 2009 - \$0.9 million and \$0.1 million, respectively). For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded losses of \$0.6 million (March 31, 2009 gains of \$1.3 million) in its consolidated statement of operations related to these derivatives. The fair value of these derivatives is determined using exchange traded prices.

#### **Foreign Currency Derivatives**

The Company s functional currency is the U.S. dollar. The Company writes a portion of its business in currencies other than U.S. dollars and may, from time to time, experience foreign exchange gains and losses, other income (loss) and incur underwriting income (losses) in currencies other than U.S. dollars, which will in turn affect the Company s consolidated financial statements. All changes in exchange rates, with the exception of non-U.S. dollar denominated investments classified as available for sale, are recognized currently in the Company s consolidated statements of operations.

Underwriting Operations Related Foreign Currency Contracts

The Company s foreign currency policy with regard to its underwriting operations is generally to hold foreign currency assets, including cash, investments and receivables that approximate the foreign currency liabilities, including claims and claim expense reserves and reinsurance balances payable. When necessary, the Company may use foreign currency forward and option contracts to minimize the effect of fluctuating foreign currencies on the value of non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities associated with its underwriting operations. At March 31, 2010, the total notional amount in U.S. dollars of the Company s underwriting related foreign currency contracts was \$87.0 million. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company incurred a loss of \$1.7 million (March 31, 2009 \$1.4 million) on its foreign currency forward and option contracts related to its underwriting operations.

29

#### **Table of Contents**

Investment Portfolio Related Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

The Company s investment operations are exposed to currency fluctuations through its investments in non-U.S. dollar fixed maturity investments, short term investments and other investments. To economically hedge its exposure to currency fluctuations from these investments, the Company has entered into foreign currency forward contracts. Foreign exchange gains (losses) associated with the Company s hedging of these non-U.S. dollar investments are recorded in net foreign exchange losses in its consolidated statements of operations. At March 31, 2010, the Company had outstanding investment portfolio related foreign currency contracts of \$58.4 million in long positions and \$363.6 million in short positions, denominated in U.S. dollars. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded a gain of \$15.5 million (March 31, 2009 a gain of \$4.3 million) related to its foreign currency forward contracts entered into to seek to economically hedge the Company s non-U.S. dollar investments.

Energy and Risk Operations Related Foreign Currency Contracts

The Company s energy and risk operations are exposed to currency fluctuations through certain derivative transactions it enters into that are denominated in non-U.S. dollars. The Company may, from time to time, use foreign currency forward and option contracts to minimize the effect of fluctuating foreign currencies on the value of non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities associated with these operations. At March 31, 2010, the total notional amount in United States dollars of the Company s energy and risk management operations related to foreign currency contracts was \$nil. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company incurred losses of \$0.3 million (March 31, 2009 \$nil) on its foreign currency forward and option contracts related to its energy and risk management operations.

#### **Credit Derivatives**

The Company s exposure to credit risk is primarily due to its fixed maturity investments, short term investments, premiums receivable and ceded reinsurance balances. From time to time, the Company purchases credit derivatives to hedge its exposures in the insurance industry, to assist in managing the credit risk associated with ceded reinsurance, or to assume credit risk. The fair value of the credit derivatives is determined using industry valuation models. The fair value of these credit derivatives can change based on a variety of factors including changes in credit spreads, default rates and recovery rates, the correlation of credit risk between the referenced credit and the counterparty, and market rate inputs such as interest rates. The fair value of these credit derivatives, as recognized in other liabilities in the Company s balance sheet, at March 31, 2010 was \$0.1 million (December 31, 2009 \$0.5 million). During the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company recorded gains of \$0.3 million attributable to its credit derivatives (March 31, 2009 \$0.6 million) which are included in other loss and represent net settlements and changes in the fair value of these credit derivatives.

#### **Energy and Weather-Related Derivatives**

The Company regularly transacts certain derivative-based risk management products primarily to address weather and energy risks and engages in hedging and trading activities related to these risks. The trading markets for these derivatives are generally linked to energy and agriculture commodities, weather and other natural phenomena. Currently, a significant percentage of the Company s derivative-based risk management products are transacted on a dual-trigger basis combining weather or other natural phenomenon, with prices for commodities or securities related to energy or agriculture. The fair value of these contracts is obtained through the use of quoted market prices, or in the absence of such quoted prices, industry or internal valuation models. These contracts are recorded on the Company s balance sheet in other assets and other liabilities and totaled \$4.0 million and \$12.5 million, respectively, at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$17.0 million and \$25.1 million, respectively).

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, the Company generated income related to these derivatives of \$3.1 million (March 31, 2009 \$7.4 million) which is included in other loss and represents net settlements and changes in the fair value of these contracts. Generally, the Company s current portfolio of such derivative contracts is of comparably short duration and are frequently seasonal in nature. Over time, the Company currently expects that its participation in these markets, and the impact of these operations on its financial results, is likely to increase on both an absolute and relative basis.

30

At March 31, 2010, the Company had the following gross derivative contract positions outstanding relating to its energy and weather derivatives trading activities.

Trading activity	Quantity (1)	Unit of measurement
Temperature	3,859,601	\$ per Degree Day Fahrenheit
Precipitation	200,000	\$ per Event
Energy	62,336,463	One million British thermal units ( MMBTUs )
Agriculture	3,635,000	Bushels

#### (1) Represents the sum of gross long and gross short derivative contracts.

The Company uses value-at-risk (VaR) analysis to monitor the risks associated with its energy and weather derivatives trading portfolio. VaR is a tool that measures the potential loss that could occur if the Company's trading positions were maintained over a defined period of time, calculated at a given statistical confidence level. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company's energy and weather derivatives trading activities, the VaR is based on a rolling two season (one-year) holding period assuming no dynamic trading during the holding period. A 99% confidence level is used for the VaR analysis. A 99% confidence level implies that within a one-year period, the potential loss in the Company's portfolio is not expected to exceed the VaR estimate in 99% of the possible modeled outcomes. In the remaining estimated 1% of the possible outcomes, the anticipated potential loss is expected to be higher than the VaR figure, and on average substantially higher.

The VaR model, based on a Monte Carlo simulation methodology, seeks to take into account correlations between different positions and potential for movements to offset one another within the portfolio. The expected value of the risk factors in the Company s portfolio are generally obtained from exchange-traded futures markets. For most of the risk factors, the volatility is derived from exchange-traded options markets. For those risk factors for which exchange-traded options might not exist, the volatility is based on historical analysis matched to broker quotes from the over-the-counter market, where available. The joint distribution of outcomes is based on the Company s estimate of the historical seasonal dependence among the underlying risk factors, scaled to the current market levels. The Company then estimates the expected outcomes by applying a Monte Carlo simulation to these risk factors. The joint distribution of the simulated risk factors is then filtered through the portfolio positions, and then the distribution of the outcomes is realized. The 99<sup>th</sup> percentile of this distribution is then calculated as the portfolio VaR. The major limitation of this methodology is that the market data used to forecast parameters of the model may not be an appropriate proxy of those parameters. The VaR methodology uses a number of assumptions, such as (i) risks are measured under average market conditions, assuming normal distribution of market risk factors, (ii) future movements in market risk factors follow estimated historical movements, and (iii) the assessed exposures do not change during the holding period. There is no guarantee that these assumptions will prove correct. The Company expects that, for any given period, its actual results will differ from its assumptions, including with respect to previously estimated potential losses and that such losses could be substantially higher than the estimated VaR.

At March 31, 2010, the estimated VaR for the Company s portfolio of energy and weather-related derivatives, as described above, calculated at an estimated 99% confidence level, was \$20.2 million. The average, low and high amounts calculated by the Company s VaR analysis during the three months ended March 31, 2010 were \$2.4 million, \$0.4 million and \$25.6 million, respectively.

At March 31, 2010, RenaissanceRe had provided guarantees in the amount of \$166.7 million to certain counterparties of the weather and energy risk operations of Renaissance Trading. In the future, RenaissanceRe may issue guarantees for other purposes or increase the amount of guarantees issued to counterparties of Renaissance Trading.

#### **Platinum Warrant**

The Company holds a warrant, which expires on October 30, 2012, to purchase up to 2.5 million common shares of Platinum for \$27.00 per share. The Company has recorded its investment in the Platinum warrant at fair value. At March 31, 2010, the fair value of the warrant was \$31.2 million (December 31, 2009 \$34.9 million). The fair value of the warrant is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, losses of \$3.7 million were recorded in other loss representing the change in the fair value of the warrant (March 31, 2009 \$13.7 million).

The table below shows the location on the consolidated balance sheets and fair value of the Company s principal derivative instruments:

	<b>Derivative Assets</b>					
	At March 31	1, 2010	At December	31, 2009		
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)	<b>Balance Sheet</b>	Fair	<b>Balance Sheet</b>	Fair		
	Location	Value	Location	Value		
Interest rate futures	Other assets	\$ 42	Other assets	\$ 862		
Foreign currency forward contracts (1)	Other assets		Other assets			
Foreign currency forward contracts (2)	Other assets	5,051	Other assets	3,292		
Foreign currency forward contracts (3)	Other assets		Other assets	49		
Credit default swaps	Other assets		Other assets			
Energy and weather contracts (4)	Other assets	4,036	Other assets	17,006		
Platinum warrant	Other assets	31,174	Other assets	34,871		
Total		\$ 40,303		\$ 56,080		

	Derivative Liabilities				
	At March 31	, 2010	At December :	31, 2009	
(in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Balance Sheet	Fair	<b>Balance Sheet</b>	Fair	
	Location	Value	Location	Value	
Interest rate futures	Other liabilities	\$ 256	Other liabilities	\$ 143	
Foreign currency forward contracts (1)	Other liabilities	723	Other liabilities	776	
Foreign currency forward contracts (2)	Other liabilities		Other liabilities		
Foreign currency forward contracts (3)	Other liabilities		Other liabilities		
Credit default swaps	Other liabilities	54	Other liabilities	549	
Energy and weather contracts (4)	Other liabilities	12,530	Other liabilities	25,086	
Platinum warrant	Other liabilities		Other liabilities		
Total		\$ 13,563		\$ 26,554	

- (1) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in underwriting and non-investment operations.
- (2) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in investment operations.
- (3) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in energy and risk operations.
- (4) Included in other assets is \$4.4 million of derivative assets and \$0.3 million of derivative liabilities at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$22.7 million and \$5.7 million, respectively). Included in other liabilities is \$8.9 million of derivative assets and \$21.4 million of derivative liabilities at March 31, 2010 (December 31, 2009 \$55.9 million and \$81.0 million, respectively).

The location and amount of the gain (loss) recognized in the Company s consolidated statements of operations related to its derivative instruments is shown in the following table:

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	Location of gain (loss) recognized on derivatives	Amount of recognized or 2010	0 \
Interest rate futures	Net investment income	\$ (553)	\$ 1,327
Foreign currency forward contracts (1)	Net foreign exchange losses	(1,708)	(1,350)
Foreign currency forward contracts (2)	Net foreign exchange losses	15,452	4,306
Foreign currency forward contracts (3)	Net foreign exchange losses	(2,983)	
Credit default swaps	Other loss	282	612
Energy and weather contracts	Other loss	3,090	7,446
Platinum warrant	Other loss	(3,697)	(13,724)
Total		\$ 9,883	\$ (1,383)

- (1) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in underwriting operations.
- (2) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in investment operations.
- (3) Contracts used to manage foreign currency risks in energy and risk operations.

The Company is not aware of the existence of any credit-risk related contingent features that it believes would be triggered in its derivative instruments that are in a net liability position at March 31, 2010.

# NOTE 10. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH OUTSTANDING DEBT OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following tables present condensed consolidating balance sheets at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and condensed consolidating statements of operations and statements of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, for RenaissanceRe, RRNAH and RenaissanceRe s other subsidiaries. RRNAH is a wholly owned subsidiary of RenaissanceRe.

On March 17, 2010, RRNAH issued, and RenaissanceRe guaranteed, \$250.0 million of 5.75% Senior Notes due March 15, 2020, with interest on the notes payable on March 15 and September 15. The notes can be redeemed by RRNAH prior to maturity subject to payment of a make-whole premium. The notes, which are senior obligations, contain various covenants, including limitations on mergers and consolidations, restrictions as to the disposition of the stock of designated subsidiaries and limitations on liens of the stock of designated subsidiaries.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet March 31, 2010	Н	naissanceRe oldings Ltd. (Parent Guarantor)	Ho	RenRe North America oldings Inc. Subsidiary Issuer)	H S E (Ne	Other enaissanceRe foldings Ltd. Subsidiaries and Climinations on-guarantor ubsidiaries)	Consolidating Adjustments (2)	Renaissano Consolida	
Assets		sual alliol)		issuei)		(1)	(2)	Consonua	iteu
Total investments	\$	445,165	\$	243,653	\$	5,661,813	\$	\$ 6,350,	631
Cash and cash equivalents		13,855		11,795	Ť	333,123	· *	358,	
Investments in subsidiaries		3,371,972		359,092		,	(3,731,064)		
Due from subsidiaries and affiliates		88,221		,			(88,221)		
Premiums receivable		,				511,832	, , ,	511,	832
Ceded reinsurance balances						121,836		121,	
Losses recoverable						156,820		156,	820
Accrued investment income		1,482		1,116		30,186		32,	784
Deferred acquisition costs						74,489		74,	489
Other assets		14,828		825		316,997	(4,143)	328,	507
Total assets	\$	3,935,523	\$	616,481	\$	7,207,096	\$ (3,823,428)	\$ 7,935,	672
Liabilities, Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest and									
Shareholders Equity									
Liabilities						4 60 7 00 7	Φ.	A 4 60 F	•••
Reserve for claims and claim expenses	\$		\$		\$	1,695,397	\$	\$ 1,695,	
Reserve for unearned premiums		124.000		220.006		614,490	(104.000)	614,	
Debt		124,000		329,086		200,000	(104,000)	549,	086
Amounts due to subsidiaries and affiliates				460		041.544	(460)	0.41	<b>511</b>
Reinsurance balances payable		20, 222		11.600		241,544	(15.049)	241,	
Other liabilities		20,232		11,600		368,555	(15,048)	385,	339
Total liabilities		144,232		341,146		3,119,986	(119,508)	3,485,	856
Redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe						658,525		658,	525
Shareholders Equity									
Total shareholders equity		3,791,291		275,335		3,428,585	(3,703,920)	3,791,	291
Total liabilities, redeemable noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity	\$	3,935,523	\$	616,481	\$	7,207,096	\$ (3,823,428)	\$ 7,935,	672

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes all other subsidiaries of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and eliminations.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuer consolidating adjustments.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet December 31, 2009	RenaissanceR Holdings Ltd. (Parent Guarantor)	America	Other RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. Subsidiaries and Eliminations (Non-guarantor Subsidiaries)	Consolidating Adjustments (2)	RenaissanceRe Consolidated
Assets	ĺ	ĺ	, ,	•	
Total investments	\$ 484,560	\$ 410	\$ 5,768,441	\$	\$ 6,253,411
Cash and cash equivalents	15,206	7,606	237,904		260,716
Investments in subsidiaries	3,310,916	369,997		(3,680,913)	
Due from subsidiaries and affiliates	182,565			(182,565)	
Premiums receivable			589,827		589,827
Ceded reinsurance balances			91,852		91,852
Losses recoverable			194,241		194,241
Accrued investment income	1,727		30,201		31,928
Deferred acquisition costs			61,870		61,870
Other assets	17,199		304,863	(4,866)	317,196
Total assets	\$ 4,012,173	\$ 378,013	\$ 7,279,199	\$ (3,868,344)	\$ 7,801,041
Liabilities, Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest and					
Shareholders Equity					
Liabilities					
Reserve for claims and claim expenses	\$	\$	\$ 1,702,006	\$	\$ 1,702,006
Reserve for unearned premiums			446,649		446,649
Debt	124,000	80,000	200,000	(104,000)	300,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries and affiliates	12,522	1,155		(13,677)	
Reinsurance balances payable			381,548		381,548
Other liabilities	34,865	15,138	293,402		343,405
Total liabilities	171,387	96,293	3,023,605	(117,677)	3,173,608
Redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe			786,647		786,647
Shareholders Equity					
Total shareholders equity	3,840,786	281,720	3,468,947	(3,750,667)	3,840,786
Total liabilities, redeemable noncontrolling interest and shareholders equity	\$ 4,012,173	\$ 378,013	\$ 7,279,199	\$ (3,868,344)	\$ 7,801,041

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes all other subsidiaries of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and eliminations.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuer consolidating adjustments.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations  For the three months ended March 31, 2010	RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. (Parent Guarantor)	Hol (Si	RenRe North America Idings Inc. ubsidiary Issuer)	Su Eli (Noi	Other naissanceRe Holdings Ltd. absidiaries and iminations n-guarantor bsidiaries) (1)	nsolidating ustments (2)	aissanceRe nsolidated
Revenues							
Net premiums earned	\$	\$		\$	278,126	\$	\$ 278,126
Net investment income	5,644		330		61,207		67,181
Net foreign exchange losses	(165)				(11,177)		(11,342)
Equity in earnings of other ventures					2,156		2,156
Other income (loss)	641				(6,372)		(5,731)
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on fixed maturity					(=,= : =)		(0,100)
investments	4,159		(3,425)		47,864		48,598
Net other-than-temporary impairments	1,137		(3,123)		(33)		(33)
The other than temperary impairments					(22)		(55)
Total revenues	10,279		(3,095)		271 771		378,955
Total revenues	10,279		(3,093)		371,771		370,933
E							
Expenses					70.057		70.057
Net claims and claim expenses incurred					79,057		79,057
Acquisition expenses	2.1		200		44,675	(200)	44,675
Operational expenses	21		208		64,530	(208)	64,551
Corporate expenses	4,653		12		894	(2.25)	5,559
Interest expense	1,436		2,970		1,117	(2,367)	3,156
Total expenses	6,110		3,190		190,273	(2,575)	196,998
Income (loss) before equity in net income (loss) of							
subsidiaries and taxes	4,169		(6,285)		181,498	2,575	181,957
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries	171,453		(3,554)			(167,899)	
Income (loss) before taxes	175,622		(9,839)		181,498	(165,324)	181,957
Income tax benefit			2,906		1,309		4,215
			ŕ		Ź		Ź
Net income (loss)	175,622		(6,933)		182,807	(165,324)	186,172
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling	, .		(-))		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	( )-	, -
interest - DaVinciRe					(10,550)		(10,550)
Net income (loss) attributable to RenaissanceRe	175,622		(6,933)		172,257	(165,324)	175,622
Dividends on preference shares	(10,575)		(2,200)		, <b>=</b> · ·	(,)	(10,575)
= 1.1211250 on prevenue onaico	(10,575)						(10,070)
Net income (loss) available (attributable) to RenaissanceRe common shareholders	\$ 165,047	\$	(6,933)	\$	172,257	\$ (165,324)	\$ 165,047

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes all other subsidiaries of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and eliminations.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuer consolidating adjustments.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations	H	aissanceRe (oldings Ltd. Parent	Hol (St	RenRe North America Idings Inc.	St El (No	Other naissanceRe Holdings Ltd. ubsidiaries and liminations n-guarantor ubsidiaries)		solidating ustments		aissanceRe
For the three months ended March 31, 2009	Gu	arantor)		Issuer)		(1)		(2)	Co	nsolidated
Revenues	ф		ф		\$	201.740	Ф		Ф	201.740
Net premiums earned	\$	1.002	\$	_	Э	301,748	\$		\$	301,748
Net investment income		1,982		5		40,139				42,126
Net foreign exchange losses (gains)		10				(10,165)				(10,155)
Equity in earnings of other ventures						1,736				1,736
Other income (loss)		551				(15,346)				(14,795)
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity										
investments		1,124				21,002				22,126
Net other-than-temporary impairments		(801)				(18,221)				(19,022)
Total revenues		2,866		5		320,893				323,764
Expenses										
Net claims and claim expenses incurred						86,197				86,197
Acquisition expenses						44,604				44,604
Operational expenses		(1,475)		36		39,721		1,475		39,757
Corporate expenses		5.223				1,365		-,.,-		6,588
Interest expense		2,335		1.645		1,801		(1,645)		4,136
		,		,		,		( ) /		,
Total expenses		6,083		1,681		173,688		(170)		181,282
(Loss) income before equity in net income (loss) of		(2.215)		(1.650)		1.45.205		150		1.42.402
subsidiaries and taxes		(3,217)		(1,676)		147,205		170		142,482
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries		111,076		(1,952)			(	(109,124)		
Income (loss) before taxes		107,859		(3,628)		147,205	(	(108,954)		142,482
Income tax (expense) benefit		107,009		(380)		1,232	,	(100,751)		852
Net income (loss)		107,859		(4,008)		148,437	(	(108,954)		143,334
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest		,				ĺ				,
- DaVinciRe						(35,475)				(35,475)
Net income (loss) attributable to RenaissanceRe		107,859		(4,008)		112,962	(	(108,954)		107,859
Dividends on preference shares		(10,575)		(1,000)		-12,>02	,	(0,/01)		(10,575)
•		(10,070)								(10,070)
Net income (loss) available (attributable) to RenaissanceRe common shareholders	\$	97,284	\$	(4,008)	\$	112,962	\$ (	(108,954)	\$	97,284
	Ψ	, , <b>_</b> 0 1	Ψ	( .,500)	Ψ	112,702	Ψ	(=00,201)	Ψ	, , <u>2</u> 01

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes all other subsidiaries of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and eliminations.

<sup>(2)</sup> Includes Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuer consolidating adjustments.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows  For the three months ended March 31, 2010	<b>H</b>	nissanceRe foldings Ltd. Parent arantor)	Hol (St	RenRe North America Idings Inc. ubsidiary Issuer)	Other RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. Subsidiaries and Eliminations (Non-guarantor Subsidiaries) (1)		RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. Subsidiaries and Eliminations nc. (Non-guarantor ry Subsidiaries)			naissanceRe onsolidated	
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities  Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$	871	\$	(5,436)	\$	235,154	\$	230,589			
	,		_	(=,:==)	_		_				
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities											
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments available for sale		37,457				2,424,108		2,461,565			
Purchases of investments available for sale		(240)		(246,569)		(130,011)		(376,820)			
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments trading		203,914		( - ) )		608,778	812,692				
Purchases of investments trading		(224,667)				(2,853,723)		(3,078,390)			
Net sales (purchases) of short term investments		28,470		(96)		109,604		137,978			
Net (purchases) sales of other investments		(888)				16,989		16,101			
Net sales of other assets					2,729			2,729			
Dividends and return of capital from subsidiaries		136,065		21,627		(157,692)					
Contributions to subsidiaries		(47,805)		(13,728)		61,533					
Due to (from) subsidiary		94,970		(695)		(94,275)					
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities		227,276		(239,461)		(11,960)		(24,145)			
Cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities											
Dividends paid - RenaissanceRe common shares		(14,792)						(14,792)			
Dividends paid - preference shares		(10,575)						(10,575)			
RenaissanceRe common share repurchases		(203,658)						(203,658)			
Net repayment (issuance) of debt				249,086				249,086			
Third party DaVinciRe share repurchase						(123,084)		(123,084)			
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities		(229,025)		249,086		(123,084)		(103,023)			
Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash		(473)				(4,891)		(5,364)			
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents		(1,351)		4,189		95,219		98,057			
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year		15,206		7,606		237,904		260,716			
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	\$	13,855	\$	11,795	\$	333,123	\$	358,773			

 $<sup>(1) \</sup>quad Includes \ all \ other \ subsidiaries \ of \ Renaissance Re \ Holdings \ Ltd. \ and \ eliminations.$ 

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows  For the three months ended March 31, 2009  Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities	<b>H</b>	nissanceRe oldings Ltd. Parent arantor)	Renaissan Holdings RenRe Subsidia North and America Eliminati Holdings Inc. (Non-guar		Eliminations (Non-guarantor Subsidiaries) Renaissa		naissanceRe onsolidated	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$	4.318	\$	(1,072)	\$	139,753	\$	142,999
To cash provided by (asea iii) operating activates	Ψ	1,510	Ψ	(1,072)	Ψ	139,733	Ψ	112,555
Cash flows provided by investing activities								
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments available for sale		46,541				1,648,957		1,695,498
Purchases of investments available for sale		(64,083)				(1,656,076)	(	(1,720,159)
Net sales of short term investments		195,007				(159,000)		36,007
Net sales of other investments				2		23,474		23,476
Net purchases of other assets						(965)		(965)
Dividends and return of capital from subsidiaries		133,386				(133,386)		
Contributions to subsidiaries		(210,965)				210,965		
Due to (from) subsidiaries		48,735		37		(48,772)		
Net cash provided by investing activities		148,621		39		(114,803)		33,857
Cash flows used in financing activities								
Dividends paid - RenaissanceRe common shares		(14,961)						(14,961)
Dividends paid - preference shares		(10,575)						(10,575)
Reverse repurchase agreement		( - ) )				(50,042)		(50,042)
DaVinci share repurchase		(123,718)				, , ,		(123,718)
Net cash used in financing activities		(149,254)				(50,042)		(199,296)
Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash						(2,912)		(2,912)
						, , ,		
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		3,685		(1,033)		(28,004)		(25,352)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year		5,122		5,562		264,008		274,692
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	\$	8,807	\$	4,529	\$	236,004	\$	249,340

## NOTE 11. RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140, and the FASB subsequently codified it as Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2009-16, updating ASC Topic 860 Transfers and Servicing. The objective of ASU 2009-16 is to improve the relevance, representational faithfulness, and comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financial statements about a transfer of financial assets; the effects of a transfer on its financial position, financial performance, and cash flows; and a transferor s continuing involvement, if any, in transferred financial assets. ASU 2009-16 must be applied as of the beginning of the reporting entity s first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual period and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is prohibited. ASU 2009-16 must be applied to transfers

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes all other subsidiaries of RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd. and eliminations.

occurring on or after the effective date. Additionally, the disclosure provisions of ASU 2009-16 should be applied to transfers that occurred both before and after the effective date. The Company adopted ASU 2009-16 effective January 1, 2010 and the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated statements of operations and financial condition.

39

Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 167, *Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R,)* and the FASB subsequently codified it as ASU 2009-17, updating ASC Topic 810 *Consolidations*. The objective of ASU 2009-17 is to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities. The FASB undertook this project to address (1) the effects on certain provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46, *Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities* an *Interpretation of ARB No. 51, as revised* (FIN 46(R)), as a result of the elimination of the qualifying special-purpose entity concept in ASU 2009-16, and (2) constituent concerns about the application of certain key provisions of FIN 46(R), including those in which the accounting and disclosures under the interpretation do not always provide timely and useful information about an enterprise s involvement in a variable interest entity. ASU 2009-17 shall be effective as of the beginning of each reporting entity s first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is prohibited. The Company adopted ASU 2009-17 effective January 1, 2010 and the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated statements of operations and financial condition.

Improving Fair Value Disclosure

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-6 which updated FASB ASU Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. The objective of ASU 2010-6 is to improve fair value disclosures by requiring the following: (1) disclose significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers; (2) present separately information about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis; (3) provide fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities, where a class is often a subset of a financial statement line; and (4) provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2010-06 shall be effective as of the beginning of each reporting entity s first annual reporting period that begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within that first annual reporting period, and for interim and annual reporting periods thereafter, except for item (2) noted above, which shall become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted ASU 2010-06 effective January 1, 2010 and the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated statements of operations and financial condition as it was a disclosure based ASU.

#### NOTE 12. LITIGATION

There are no material changes from the legal proceedings previously disclosed in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

The Company s operating subsidiaries are subject to claims litigation involving disputed interpretations of policy coverages. Generally, the Company s primary insurance operations are subject to greater frequency and diversity of claims and claims-related litigation and, in some jurisdictions, may be subject to direct actions by allegedly injured persons or entities seeking damages from policyholders. These lawsuits, involving claims on policies issued by the Company s subsidiaries which are typical to the insurance industry in general and in the normal course of business, are considered in its loss and loss expense reserves which are discussed in its loss reserves discussion. In addition to claims litigation, the Company and its subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits and regulatory actions in the normal course of business that do not arise from or directly relate to claims on insurance policies. This category of business litigation may involve allegations of underwriting or claims-handling errors or misconduct, employment claims, regulatory activity or disputes arising from the Company s business ventures. Any such litigation or arbitration contains an element of uncertainty, and the Company believes the inherent uncertainty in such matters may have increased recently and will likely continue to increase. Currently, the Company believes that no individual, normal course litigation or arbitration to which it is presently a party is likely to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition, business or operations.

40

#### NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to March 31, 2010 and through the period ending April 26, 2010, the Company has repurchased an additional 416 thousand common shares in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of \$23.7 million and at an average share price of \$56.85.

On April 22, 2010, RenaissanceRe entered into a revolving credit agreement (the Credit Agreement ) with various financial institutions parties thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as fronting bank, letter of credit administrator and administrative agent for the lenders thereunder, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as syndication agent. The Credit Agreement replaced the third amended and restated credit agreement, dated as of April 9, 2009, which expired by its terms on March 31, 2010.

The Credit Agreement provides for a revolving commitment to RenaissanceRe of \$150.0 million, including the issuance of letters of credit for the account of RenaissanceRe and RenaissanceRe s insurance subsidiaries of up to \$150.0 million and the issuance of letters of credit for the account of RenaissanceRe s non-insurance subsidiaries of up to \$50.0 million. RenaissanceRe has the right, subject to satisfying certain conditions, to increase the size of the facility to \$250.0 million. The scheduled commitment maturity date of the Credit Agreement is April 22, 2013. The Credit Agreement contains representations, warranties and covenants customary for bank loan facilities of this type. In addition to customary covenants which limit RenaissanceRe s ability to merge, consolidate, enter into negative pledge agreements, sell a substantial amount of its assets, incur liens and declare or pay dividends under certain circumstances, the Credit Agreement also contains certain financial covenants. These financial covenants generally provide that consolidated debt to capital shall not exceed the ratio of 0.35:1 and that the consolidated net worth of RenaissanceRe and Renaissance Reinsurance shall equal or exceed \$2.1 billion and \$960.0 million, respectively (the Net Worth Requirements). The Net Worth Requirements are recalculated effective as of the end of each fiscal year, all as more fully set forth in the Credit Agreement.

On April 22, 2010, the Company s reimbursement agreement with respect to its principal letter of credit facility was amended and restated to, among other things, (i) extend the term of the agreement to April 22, 2013; (ii) change the total commitment thereunder from \$1.4 billion to \$1.0 billion; (iii) provide for the potential increase of the total commitment to up to \$1.5 billion if certain conditions are met; (iv) increase the minimum net worth requirement with respect to Renaissance Reinsurance by \$1.0 billion to \$1.75 billion (which such net worth requirement is subject to recalculation effective as of the end of each fiscal year); and (v) increase the minimum net worth requirement with respect to DaVinci by \$350.0 million to \$650.0 million. At March 31, 2010, the Company had \$686.1 million of letters of credit with effective dates on or before March 31, 2010 outstanding under the facility.

On April 26, 2010, Renaissance Reinsurance and Citibank Europe PLC ( CEP ) entered into an Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement (the Pledge Agreement ) in respect of its letter of credit facility with CEP which is evidenced by the Master Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2009, and provides for the issuance and renewal of letters of credit which are used to support business written by Syndicate 1458. Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, Renaissance Reinsurance has agreed to pledge to CEP at all times during the term of the Reimbursement Agreement certain securities with a collateral value equal to 100% of the aggregate amount of the then-outstanding letters of credit.

41

#### Item 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. The following also includes a discussion of our liquidity and capital resources at March 31, 2010. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this filing and the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. This filing contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may differ materially from the results described or implied by these forward-looking statements. See Note on Forward-Looking Statements.

#### **OVERVIEW**

RenaissanceRe, established in Bermuda in 1993 to write principally property catastrophe reinsurance, is today a leading global provider of reinsurance and insurance coverages and related services. Through our operating subsidiaries, we seek to produce superior returns for our shareholders by being a trusted, long-term partner to our customers for assessing and managing risk, delivering responsive solutions, and keeping our promises. We accomplish this by leveraging our core capabilities of risk assessment and information management, and by investing in our capabilities to serve our customers across the cycles that have historically characterized our markets. Overall, our strategy focuses on superior risk selection, marketing, capital management and joint ventures. We provide value to our customers and joint venture partners in the form of financial security, innovative products, and responsive service. We are known as a leader in paying valid reinsurance claims promptly. We principally measure our financial success through long-term growth in tangible book value per common share plus the change in accumulated dividends, which we believe is the most appropriate measure of our Company s performance, and believe we have delivered superior performance in respect of this measure over time.

Since a substantial portion of the reinsurance and insurance we write provides protection from damages relating to natural and man-made catastrophes, our results depend to a large extent on the frequency and severity of such catastrophic events, and the coverages we offer to customers affected by these events. We are exposed to significant losses from these catastrophic events and other exposures that we cover. Accordingly, we expect a significant degree of volatility in our financial results and our financial results may vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter or from year-to-year, based on the level of insured catastrophic losses occurring around the world.

Our revenues are principally derived from three sources: 1) net premiums earned from the reinsurance and insurance policies we sell; 2) net investment income and realized and unrealized gains from the investment of our capital funds and the investment of the cash we receive on the policies which we sell; and 3) other income received from our joint ventures, advisory services, weather and energy risk management operations and various other items.

Our expenses primarily consist of: 1) net claims and claim expenses incurred on the policies of reinsurance and insurance we sell; 2) acquisition costs which typically represent a percentage of the premiums we write; 3) operating expenses which primarily consist of personnel expenses, rent and other operating expenses; 4) corporate expenses which include certain executive, legal and consulting expenses, costs for research and development, and other miscellaneous costs associated with operating as a publicly traded company; 5) redeemable noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe, which represents the interest of third parties with respect to the net income (loss) of DaVinciRe; and 6) interest and dividend costs related to our debt and preference shares. We are also subject to taxes in certain jurisdictions in which we operate; however, since the majority of our income is currently earned in Bermuda, a non-taxable jurisdiction, the tax impact to our operations has historically been minimal. We currently expect our growth outside of Bermuda to result in a higher effective tax rate in future periods.

The operating results, also known as the underwriting results, of an insurance or reinsurance company are discussed frequently by reference to its net claims and claim expense ratio, underwriting expense ratio, and combined ratio. The net claims and claim expense ratio is calculated by dividing net claims and claim expenses incurred by net premiums earned. The underwriting expense ratio is calculated by dividing underwriting expenses (acquisition expenses and operational expenses) by net premiums earned. The combined ratio is the sum of the net claims and claim expense ratio and the underwriting expense ratio. A combined ratio below 100% generally indicates

profitable underwriting prior to the consideration of investment income. A combined ratio over 100% generally indicates unprofitable underwriting prior to the consideration of investment income. We also discuss our net claims and claim expense ratio on an accident year basis. This ratio is calculated by taking net claims and claim expenses, excluding development on net claims and claim expenses from events that took place in prior fiscal years, divided by net premiums earned.

We currently conduct our business through two reportable segments, Reinsurance and Insurance. Those segments are more fully described as follows:

Reinsurance

Our Reinsurance segment has four main units:

- 1) Property catastrophe reinsurance, written for our own account and for DaVinci, is our traditional core business. We believe we are one of the world s leading providers of this coverage, based on catastrophe gross premiums written. This coverage protects against large natural catastrophes, such as earthquakes, hurricanes and tsunamis, as well as claims arising from other natural and man-made catastrophes such as winter storms, freezes, floods, fires, wind storms, tornadoes, explosions and acts of terrorism. We offer this coverage to insurance companies and other reinsurers primarily on an excess of loss basis. This means that we begin paying when our customers claims from a catastrophe exceed a certain retained amount.
- 2) Specialty reinsurance, written for our own account and for DaVinci, covering certain targeted classes of business where we believe we have a sound basis for underwriting and pricing the risk that we assume. Our portfolio includes various classes of business, such as catastrophe exposed workers compensation, surety, terrorism, political risk, trade credit, medical malpractice, financial, mortgage guarantee, catastrophe-exposed personal lines property, casualty clash, certain other casualty lines and other specialty lines of reinsurance that we collectively refer to as specialty reinsurance. We believe that we are seen as a market leader in certain of these classes of business, such as casualty clash, surety, catastrophe-exposed workers compensation and terrorism.
- 3) Lloyd's unit, which includes insurance and reinsurance business written for our own account through Syndicate 1458. Syndicate 1458 started writing certain lines of insurance and reinsurance business incepting on or after June 1, 2009. The syndicate was established to enhance our underwriting platform by providing access to Lloyd's extensive distribution network and worldwide licenses. RenaissanceRe CCL, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is the sole corporate member of Syndicate 1458. The results of Syndicate 1458 were not significant to our overall consolidated results of operations and financial position for 2009.
- 4) Through our ventures unit, we pursue joint ventures and other strategic relationships. Our four principal business activities in this area are:
  1) property catastrophe joint ventures which we manage, such as Top Layer Re and DaVinci; 2) strategic investments in certain markets we believe offer attractive risk-adjusted returns or where we believe our investment adds value, such as our investments in Platinum, Essent Group Ltd. and the Tower Hill Companies, where, rather than assuming exclusive management responsibilities ourselves, we partner with other market participants; 3) weather and energy risk management operations primarily through Renaissance Trading and REAL; and 4) fee-based consulting services, research and development and loss and mitigation activities. Only business activities that appear in our consolidated underwriting results, such as DaVinci, Timicuan Reinsurance II Ltd. and certain reinsurance transactions, are included in our Reinsurance segment results; our share of the results of our strategic investments in other ventures, accounted for under the equity method and our weather and energy risk management operations are included in the Other category of our segment results.

Insurance

We define our Insurance segment to include underwriting that involves understanding the characteristics of the original underlying insurance policy. Our principal contracts currently include insurance contracts and some quota share reinsurance with respect to risks including: 1) crop insurance, which includes multi-peril crop insurance, crop hail and other named peril agriculture risk management products; 2) commercial property, which principally includes catastrophe-exposed commercial property products; 3) commercial multi-line, which includes commercial

43

#### **Table of Contents**

property and liability coverage, such as general liability, automobile liability and physical damage, building and contents, professional liability and various specialty products; and 4) personal lines property, which principally includes homeowners personal lines property coverage and catastrophe exposed personal lines property coverage.

Our Insurance business is primarily produced through four distribution channels: 1) wholly owned program managers—where we write primary insurance through our own subsidiaries; 2) third party program managers—where we write primary insurance through third party program managers, who produce business pursuant to agreed-upon underwriting guidelines and provide related back-office functions; 3) quota share reinsurance—where we write quota share reinsurance with primary insurers who, similar to our third party program managers, provide most of the back-office and support functions; and 4) brokers and agents—where we write primary insurance produced through licensed intermediaries on a risk-by-risk basis.

Our Insurance business is principally written through Glencoe and Lantana, which write on an excess and surplus lines basis, and through Stonington and Stonington Lloyd s, which write on an admitted basis. Since the inception of our Insurance business, we have substantially relied on third parties for services including the generation of premium, the issuance of policies and the processing of claims, though as previously disclosed, we have internalized an increasing amount of these services over the past several years. We principally oversee our third party partners through a program operations team at RenRe North America Inc., which conducts initial due diligence as well as ongoing monitoring.

#### New Business

In addition to the potential growth of our existing businesses, from time to time we consider diversification into new ventures, either through organic growth, the formation of new joint ventures, or the acquisition of or the investment in other companies or books of business of other companies. This potential diversification includes opportunities to write targeted, additional classes of risk-exposed business, both directly for our own account and through possible new joint venture opportunities. We also regularly evaluate opportunities to grow our business by utilizing our skills, capabilities, proprietary technology and relationships to expand into further risk-related coverages, services and products. Generally, we focus on underwriting or trading risks where reasonably sufficient data may be available, and where our analytical abilities may provide us a competitive advantage, in order for us to seek to model estimated probabilities of losses and returns in accordance with our approach in respect of our current portfolio of risks. We also regularly review other potential strategic transactions, including possible new investments, in both operating entities and financial instruments.

In evaluating potential new ventures or investments, we generally seek an attractive estimated return on equity, the ability to develop or capitalize on a competitive advantage, and opportunities which we believe will not detract from our core Reinsurance and Insurance operations. Accordingly, we regularly review strategic opportunities and periodically engage in discussions regarding possible transactions, although there can be no assurance that we will complete any such transactions or that any such transaction would be successful or contribute materially to our results of operations or financial condition. We believe that our ability to potentially attract investment and operational opportunities is supported by our strong reputation and financial resources, and by the capabilities and track record of our ventures unit.

#### Risk Management

We seek to develop and effectively utilize sophisticated computer models and other analytical tools to assess and manage the risks that we underwrite and attempt to optimize our portfolio of reinsurance and insurance contracts and other financial risks. Our policies, procedures, tools and resources to monitor and assess our operational risks companywide, as well as our global enterprise-wide risk management practices, are overseen by our Chief Risk Officer, who reports directly to our Chief Financial Officer.

With respect to our Reinsurance operations, since 1993 we have developed and continuously seek to improve our proprietary, computer-based pricing and exposure management system, Renaissance Exposure Management System ( REMS ). We believe that REMS, as updated from time to time, is a more robust underwriting and risk management system than is currently commercially available elsewhere in the reinsurance industry and offers us a significant competitive advantage. REMS was originally developed to analyze catastrophe risks, though we continuously seek ways to enhance the program in order to analyze other classes of risk.

44

#### **Table of Contents**

In addition to using REMS<sup>©</sup>, within our Insurance operations we have developed a proprietary information management and analytical database, our Program Analysis Central Repository (PACeR), within which data related to substantially all our Insurance segment business is maintained. With the use and development of PACeR, we are seeking to develop statistical and analytical techniques to evaluate our program lines of business within our Insurance segment. We provide our third party program managers with access to PACeR s capabilities, which we believe helps support superior underwriting decisions, thus creating value for them and for us. Our objective is to have PACeR create an advantage for our Insurance operations by assisting us in building and maintaining a well-priced portfolio of specialty insurance risks.

## SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company s critical accounting estimates are discussed in Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

45

#### SUMMARY OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the three months ended March 31, 2010 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2009

#### **Summary Overview**

Three months ended March 31,	2010		2009	Change
(in thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share amounts and ratios)	Φ 5 C 2 A C 5	ф	500 201	Φ (24 92C)
Gross premiums written	\$ 563,465	\$	598,301	\$ (34,836)
Net premiums written	415,983		446,836	(30,853)
Net premiums earned	278,126		301,748	(23,622)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	79,057		86,197	(7,140)
Underwriting income	89,843		131,190	(41,347)
Net investment income	67,181		42,126	25,055
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments	48,598		22,126	26,472
Net other-than-temporary impairments	(33)		(19,022)	18,989
Net income	186,172		143,334	42,838
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders	165,047		97,284	67,763
Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders per common				
share - diluted	\$ 2.73	\$	1.57	\$ 1.16
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	86.6%		26.2%	60.4%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years			2.4%	
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(58.2%)		2.4%	(60.6%)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	28.4%		28.6%	(0.2%)
Underwriting expense ratio	39.3%		27.9%	11.4%
Combined ratio	67.7%		56.5%	11.2%

	arch 31, 2010	ember 31, 2009	Cl	nange	% Change
Book value per common share	\$ 53.86	\$ 51.68	\$	2.18	4.2%
Accumulated dividends per common share	9.13	8.88		0.25	2.8%
Book value per common share plus accumulated dividends	\$ 62.99	\$ 60.56	\$	2.43	

Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders was \$165.0 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$97.3 million in the first three months of 2009. Net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders per fully diluted common share was \$2.73 for the first three months of 2010, compared to \$1.57 in the first three months of 2009. The increase in our net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders in the first three months of 2010, compared to the first three months of 2009, was primarily due to:

Significantly Improved Investment Results including a \$26.5 million increase in net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments, a \$25.1 million increase in net investment income and a \$19.0 million decrease in net other-than-temporary impairments, which collectively increased our net income by \$70.5 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to the first three months of 2009. The increase in our investment results was primarily due to higher total returns on certain non-investment grade allocations which are included in other investments, higher returns on hedge fund and private equity investments, the contraction of credit spreads on our fixed maturity investments and higher average invested assets compared to the first quarter of 2009. The reduction in net other-than-temporary impairments was due in part to our adoption in the second quarter of 2009 of new guidance on the recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments, as well as improving market conditions for our investments and the designation, upon acquisition of a significant portion of our fixed maturity investments as trading, rather than as available for sale:

#### **Table of Contents**

Lower Net Income Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest DaVinciRe our net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest DaVinciRe decreased \$24.9 million principally due to a reduction in underwriting income, due to the increase in current accident year net claims and claim expenses as noted below, which also impacted DaVinciRe and decreased its net income in the first three months of 2010, and consequently decreased redeemable noncontrolling interest DaVinciRe, an increase in our ownership of DaVinciRe to 41.2% for the first three months of 2010, compared to 38.2% in the first three months of 2009;

Lower Other Loss our other loss was \$5.7 million in the first three months of 2010, an improvement of \$9.1 million compared to the first three months of 2009, primarily as a result of a negative mark-to-market on the Company s Platinum warrant of \$3.7 million, compared to \$13.7 million in the first three months of 2009, and partially offset by \$1.8 million of other loss related to the Company s weather and energy derivatives trading activities, compared to \$4.8 million of other income related to these activities in the first three months of 2009; and partially offset by

Lower Underwriting Income our underwriting income decreased \$41.3 million due to a \$24.8 million increase in operational expenses and a \$23.6 million decrease in net premiums earned and partially offset by a \$7.1 million decrease in net claims and claim expenses incurred. The increase in operational expenses was primarily due to an increase in our employee base which has increased our compensation and related operating expenses. Included in the current accident year net claims and claim expenses of \$240.8 million are \$183.1 million of claims and claim expenses incurred as a result of the Chilean earthquake and European windstorm Xynthia (Xynthia), both of which occurred in the first quarter of 2010 and are described in more detail below. In addition, claims and claim expenses include \$161.7 million of favorable development on prior accident years due to reductions to our estimated ultimate losses in our catastrophe unit, combined with lower than expected loss emergence in our specialty unit and Insurance segment, as discussed below.

Book value per common share increased \$2.18 to \$53.86 at March 31, 2010, compared to \$51.68 at December 31, 2009. Book value per common share plus accumulated dividends increased \$2.43 to \$62.99 at March 31, 2010, compared to \$60.56 at December 31, 2009. The 4.2% growth in book value per common share was driven by our net income available to RenaissanceRe common shareholders of \$165.0 million, less \$14.8 million of common dividends and a \$10.7 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive income. During the first quarter of 2010, we repurchased 3.7 million common shares in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of \$203.7 million and at an average share price of \$54.78. Subsequent to March 31, 2010, and through the period ending April 26, 2010, we repurchased an additional 416 thousand common shares in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of \$23.7 million and at an average share price of \$56.85.

Net Impact of the Chilean Earthquake and Xynthia

We recorded \$124.5 million of net negative impact from the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia in the first three months of 2010. Net negative impact includes the sum of estimates of net claims and claim expenses incurred, earned reinstatement premiums assumed and ceded, lost profit commissions and redeemable noncontrolling interest. Our estimate of losses from the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia are based on initial industry insured loss estimates, market share analysis, the application of our modeling techniques, and a review of our in-force contracts. Given the preliminary nature of the information available, inadequacies in the data provided thus far by industry participants, the magnitude and recent occurrence of the events, the expected lengthy claims development period, in particular for the Chilean earthquake, and other factors and uncertainties inherent in loss estimation, meaningful uncertainty remains regarding losses from these events and our actual ultimate net losses from these events will vary from these estimates, perhaps materially so. Changes in these estimates will be recorded in the period in which they

See the supplemental financial data below for additional information detailing the net negative impact from these events on our consolidated financial statements and our Reinsurance segment results.

**Underwriting Results** 

In the first three months of 2010, we generated \$89.8 million of underwriting income, compared to \$131.2 million in the first three months of 2009. The decrease in underwriting income was driven primarily by \$23.6 million lower net premiums earned, a \$24.8 million increase in operational expenses and partially offset by a \$7.1 million decrease

in net claims and claim expenses. We generated a combined ratio of 67.7%, a net claims and claim expense ratio of 28.4% and an underwriting expense ratio of 39.3%, in the first three months of 2010, compared to a combined ratio, net claims and claim expense ratio and underwriting expense ratio of 56.5%, 28.6% and 27.9%, respectively, in the first three months of 2009.

Gross premiums written decreased \$34.8 million, or 5.8%, to \$563.5 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$598.3 million in the first three months of 2009. The decrease in gross premiums written was primarily due to the less favorable pricing and terms experienced during the January 2010 renewals, compared to the January 2009 renewals in our catastrophe unit, where gross premiums written decreased \$37.3 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to the first three months of 2009. The market conditions in our catastrophe unit were principally driven by softening market conditions as a result of the comparably low level of insured catastrophe losses in 2009, combined with the improved capital position of many participants in the (re)insurance industry in 2009. In addition, gross premiums written in our Insurance segment decreased \$13.3 million, or 20.4%, to \$51.9 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$65.1 million in the first three months of 2009. The decrease was primarily due to our prior decisions to terminate several program manager relationships and a commercial property quota share contract as a result of softening market conditions, resulting in reduced commercial property and personal lines property gross premiums written. Our specialty reinsurance unit gross premiums written increased \$3.0 million, or 4.1%, to \$74.5 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$71.5 million in the first three months of 2009.

Net premiums written decreased \$30.9 million in the first three months of 2010 to \$416.0 million from \$446.8 million in the first three months of 2009. The decrease in net premiums written was primarily due to the decrease in gross premiums written noted above and offset by a \$4.0 million decrease in ceded premiums written in the first three months of 2010 compared to the first three months of 2009. Net premiums earned decreased \$23.6 million to \$278.1 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$301.7 million in the first three months of 2009, primarily due to a reduction in net premiums earned in our Insurance segment as discussed below.

Net claims and claim expenses decreased by \$7.1 million to \$79.1 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$86.2 million in the first three months of 2009, primarily due to an increase in favorable development on prior years reserves which more than offset higher current accident year losses. Insured losses from catastrophes were significantly higher in the first three months of 2010, compared to the first three months of 2009, specifically as a result of the impact of the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia which occurred in the first quarter of 2010 and impacted our Reinsurance segment results, as discussed in more detail below, compared to the first three months of 2009, and, as a result, our current accident year net claims and claim expenses increased to \$240.8 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$78.9 million in the first three months of 2009.

Following is supplemental financial data regarding the net financial statement impact on our consolidated results for the first three months of 2010 due to the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia:

	Three months ended March 31, 2010			
	Chilean			
(in thousands of United States dollars)	Earthquake	Xynthia	Total	
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	\$ (159,183)	\$ (23,924)	\$ (183,107)	
Net reinstatement premiums earned	27,000		27,000	
Lost profit commissions	(6,347)	(857)	(7,204)	
Net impact on underwriting result	(138,530)	(24,781)	(163,311)	
Noncontrolling interest - DaVinciRe	32,934	5,881	38,815	
Net negative impact	\$ (105,596)	\$ (18,900)	\$ (124,496)	
Impact on combined ratio	58.6%	8.9%	68.5%	

Table of Contents 62

48

We experienced \$161.7 million of favorable development on prior years reserves in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$7.3 million of unfavorable development on prior years reserves in the first three months of 2009, as discussed in more detail below.

#### **Underwriting Results by Segment**

#### Reinsurance Segment

Below is a summary of the underwriting results and ratios for our Reinsurance segment followed by an analysis of our catastrophe unit, specialty unit and Lloyd s unit underwriting results and ratios for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

#### Reinsurance segment overview

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	2010	2009	Change
Gross premiums written (1)	\$ 512,392	\$ 532,916	\$ (20,524)
•			
Net premiums written	\$ 402,309	\$ 414,787	\$ (12,478)
Net premiums earned	250,040	225,971	24,069
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	101,534	16,571	84,963
Acquisition expenses	23,818	19,021	4,797
Operational expenses	40,151	29,115	11,036
Underwriting income	\$ 84,537	\$ 161,264	\$ (76,727)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 206,751	\$ 41,306	\$ 165,445
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(105,217)	(24,735)	(80,482)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ 101,534	\$ 16,571	\$ 84,963
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	82.7%	18.3%	64.4%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(42.1%)	(11.0%)	(31.1%)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	40.6%	7.3%	33.3%
Underwriting expense ratio	25.6%	21.3%	4.3%
Combined ratio	66.2%	28.6%	37.6%

Reinsurance Segment Gross Premiums Written Gross premiums written in our Reinsurance segment decreased by \$20.5 million, or 3.9%, to \$512.4 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$532.9 million in the first three months of 2009, primarily due to a decrease in gross premiums written in our catastrophe unit, which was impacted by reduced pricing on the January 2010 renewals. Excluding the impact of \$27.0 million of reinstatement premiums written and earned in the first quarter of 2010 as a direct result of the net claims and claim expenses incurred from the Chilean earthquake, our Reinsurance segment premiums would have declined \$47.5 million, or 8.9%. Our Reinsurance segment premiums are prone to significant volatility due to the timing of contract inception and also due to the business being characterized by a relatively small number of relatively large transactions.

<sup>(1)</sup> Reinsurance gross premiums written includes \$(0.8) million and \$0.2 million of premiums assumed from the Insurance segment for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Reinsurance Segment Underwriting Results Our Reinsurance segment generated \$84.5 million of underwriting income in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$161.3 million in the first three months of 2009, a decrease of \$76.7 million. The decrease in underwriting income was primarily due to an increase in net claims and claim expenses of \$85.0 million, as discussed below. In the first three months of 2010, our Reinsurance segment generated a net claims and claim expense ratio of 40.6%, an underwriting expense ratio of 25.6% and a combined

49

ratio of 66.2%, compared to 7.3%, 21.3% and 28.6%, respectively, in the first three months of 2009. Current accident year losses of \$206.8 million increased \$165.4 million from \$41.3 million in the first three months of 2009, due primarily to \$183.1 million of net claims and claim expenses related to the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia, as detailed in the table below:

	Three months ended March 31, 2010			
(in thousands of United States dollars)	Chilean Earthquake	Xynthia	Total	
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	\$ (159,183)	\$ (23,924)	\$ (183,107)	
Net reinstatement premiums earned Lost profit commissions	27,000 (6,347)	(857)	27,000 (7,204)	
Net impact on Reinsurance segment underwriting result	\$ (138,530)	\$ (24,781)	\$ (163,311)	
Impact on Reinsurance segment combined ratio	66.2%	9.9%	77.3%	

During the first three months of 2010, we experienced favorable development on prior years reserves of \$105.2 million due primarily to reductions in our estimated ultimate losses and lower than expected claims emergence in our specialty unit, combined with reductions in our estimated ultimate losses in our catastrophe unit, compared to favorable development of \$24.7 million in the first three months of 2009 which was primarily due to reported claims and claim expenses on prior years reserves coming in less than expected in our specialty unit and also due to reduced estimated ultimate losses on certain small catastrophes within our catastrophe unit. The increase in our underwriting expense ratio to 25.6% in the first three months of 2010 from 21.3% in the first three months of 2009 was principally driven by higher operating expenses, in part due to our new Lloyd s unit, and as a result of an increase in our employee base which has increased compensation and related operating expenses.

We have entered into joint ventures and specialized quota share cessions of our book of business. In accordance with the joint venture and quota share agreements, we are entitled to certain fee income and profit commissions, subject to the terms of these agreements. We record these fees and profit commissions as a reduction in acquisition and operating expenses and, accordingly, these fees have generally reduced our underwriting expense ratios. These fees totaled \$11.4 million and \$20.5 million for the first three months of 2010 and 2009, respectively, and resulted in a corresponding decrease to the Reinsurance segment underwriting expense ratio of 4.6% and 9.1% for the first three months of 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, our agreements with DaVinci provide for certain fee income and profit commissions. Because the results of DaVinci, and its parent DaVinciRe, are consolidated in our results of operations, these fees and profit commissions are eliminated in our consolidated financial statements and are principally reflected in noncontrolling interest. The net impact of all fees and profit commissions related to these joint ventures and specialized quota share cessions within our Reinsurance segment was \$21.4 million and \$30.6 million for the first three months of 2010 and 2009, respectively.

#### Catastrophe

Below is a summary of the underwriting results and ratios for our catastrophe unit for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

## Catastrophe overview

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	2010	2009	Change
Property catastrophe gross premiums written			
Renaissance	\$ 268,294	\$ 289,630	\$ (21,336)
DaVinci	155,826	171,786	(15,960)
Total property catastrophe gross premiums written (1)	\$ 424,120	\$ 461,416	\$ (37,296)
Net premiums written	\$ 317,264	\$ 347,443	\$ (30,179)
Net premiums earned	212,898	185,125	27,773
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	149,504	7,491	142,013
Acquisition expenses	18,674	10,423	8,251
Operational expenses	28,012	22,601	5,411
Underwriting income	\$ 16,708	\$ 144,610	\$ (127,902)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 181,096	\$ 19,807	\$ 161,289
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(31,592)	(12,316)	(19,276)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ 149,504	\$ 7,491	\$ 142,013
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	85.1%	10.7%	74.4%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(14.9%)	(6.7%)	(8.2%)
	70.20	4.007	(( ))
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	70.2%	4.0%	66.2%
Underwriting expense ratio	22.0%	17.9%	4.1%
Combined ratio	92.2%	21.9%	70.3%

Catastrophe Reinsurance Gross Premiums Written In the first three months of 2010, our catastrophe reinsurance gross premiums written decreased by \$37.3 million, or 8.1%, to \$424.1 million, compared to the first three months of 2009. The decrease is principally due to less favorable pricing and terms for the January 2010 renewals, which resulted in us writing less business, as well as experiencing lower premium rates on our renewal business. Excluding the impact of \$27.0 million of reinstatement premiums written and earned in the first quarter of 2010 as a direct result of the net claims and claim expenses incurred from the Chilean earthquake, our catastrophe reinsurance gross premiums written would have declined \$64.3 million or 13.9%. Our catastrophe reinsurance results have been increasingly impacted in recent periods by a relatively small number of comparably large transactions with significant clients.

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes gross premiums written ceded from the Insurance segment to the catastrophe unit of \$(0.8) million and \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

#### **Table of Contents**

Catastrophe Reinsurance Underwriting Results Our catastrophe unit generated \$16.7 million of underwriting income in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$144.6 million in the first three months of 2009, a decrease of \$127.9 million. The decrease in underwriting income was due primarily to a \$142.0 million increase in net claims and claim expenses as a result of \$175.6 million of net claims and claim expense related to the Chilean earthquake and Xynthia and partially offset by a \$19.3 million increase in favorable development on prior years reserves, as discussed below. The Chilean earthquake and Xynthia added 71.6 and 11.6 percentage points, respectively, to the catastrophe unit s combined ratio for the first three months of 2010 as detailed in the table below:

	Three months ended March 31, 2010 Catastrophe			
(in thousands of United States dollars)	Chilean Earthquake	Xynthia	Total	
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	\$ (151,683)	\$ (23,924)	\$ (175,607)	
Net reinstatement premiums earned Lost profit commissions	27,000 (6,347)	(857)	27,000 (7,204)	
Net impact on underwriting result	\$ (131,030)	\$ (24,781)	\$ (155,811)	

Impact on combined ratio 71.6% 11.6% 85.0%

In the first three months of 2010, our catastrophe unit generated a net claims and claim expense ratio of 70.2%, an underwriting expense ratio of 22.0% and a combined ratio of 92.2%, compared to 4.0%, 17.9% and 21.9%, respectively, in the first three months of 2009. During the first three months of 2010, we experienced \$31.6 million of net favorable development on prior years reserves due to lower than expected claims emergence which resulted in reductions in net ultimate losses associated with the 2005 hurricanes of \$8.1 million, the 2008 hurricanes of \$6.9 million, European windstorm Klaus of \$4.5 million and the 2009 Austrian hail storms of \$4.0 million, with the remainder due to a reduction in ultimate losses on a large number of relatively small catastrophes, compared to \$12.3 million of favorable development on prior years reserves in the first three months of 2009, as a result of reduced estimated ultimate losses on certain small catastrophes. The increase in our underwriting expense ratio to 22.0% in the first three months of 2010 from 17.9% in the first three months of 2009 was driven by an increase in acquisition expenses, primarily as a result of lower profit commissions on ceded premiums earned and higher operating expenses as a result of an increase in our employee base which has increased compensation and related operating expenses.

#### Specialty

Below is a summary of the underwriting results and ratios for our specialty reinsurance unit for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

#### **Specialty overview**

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	2010	2009	Change
Specialty gross premiums written			
Renaissance	\$ 72,449	\$ 68,973	\$ 3,476
DaVinci	2,016	2,527	(511)
Total specialty gross premiums written	\$ 74,465	\$ 71,500	\$ 2,965
Net premiums written	\$ 71,394	\$ 67,344	\$ 4,050
Net premiums earned Net claims and claim expenses incurred Acquisition expenses	30,171 (50,557) 3,985	40,846 9,080 8,598	(10,675) (59,637) (4,613)
Operational expenses	6,005	6,514	(509)
Underwriting income	\$ 70,738	\$ 16,654	\$ 54,084
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 22,969	\$ 21,499	\$ 1,470
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(73,526)	(12,419)	(61,107)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ (50,557)	\$ 9,080	\$ (59,637)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year  Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	76.1% (243.7%)	52.6% (30.4%)	23.5% (213.3%)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	(167.6%)	22.2%	(189.8%)
Underwriting expense ratio	33.1%	37.0%	(3.9%)
Combined ratio	(134.5%)	59.2%	(193.7%)

Specialty Reinsurance Gross Premiums Written In the first three months of 2010, our specialty reinsurance gross premiums written increased by \$3.0 million, or 4.1%, to \$74.5 million, compared to \$71.5 million in the first three months of 2009, due principally to the inception of several new contracts providing financial and credit reinsurance, and partially offset by the non-renewal of a quota share program in mid-2009 that did not meet our expectations and was included in gross premiums written for the first three months of 2009, but not in our gross premiums written for the first three months of 2010. Our specialty reinsurance premiums are prone to significant volatility as this business is characterized by a relatively small number of comparably large transactions.

Specialty Reinsurance Underwriting Results Our specialty unit generated \$70.7 million of underwriting income in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$16.7 million in the first three months of 2009, an increase of \$54.1 million, primarily due to decreases of \$59.6 million and \$5.1 million in net claims and claim expenses and underwriting expenses, respectively, and partially offset by a \$10.7 million decrease in net premiums earned. The decrease in net claims and claim expenses during the first three months of 2010 was due to a \$61.1 million decrease in prior accident year net claims and claim expenses. The \$73.5 million of net favorable development in the first quarter of 2010 includes \$31.4 million associated with actuarial assumption changes made in the first quarter of 2010, which decreased our reserve for claims and claim expenses, principally in our casualty clash and surety lines of business and partially offset by an increase in reserves within our workers

compensation per risk line of business, principally as a result of revised initial expected loss ratios and loss development factors due to actual experience coming in better than expected; \$25.9 million due to a decrease in case reserves and additional case reserves, which

are reserves established at the contract level for specific losses or large events; and \$16.3 million due to actual reported losses coming in lower than expected in the current quarter on prior accident years events. The favorable development on prior years reserves of \$12.4 million in the first quarter of 2009 was primarily driven by lower than expected reported claims on prior years reserves. In the first three months of 2010, our specialty unit generated a net claims and claim expense ratio of (167.6)%, an underwriting expense ratio of 33.1% and a combined ratio of (134.5)%, compared to 22.2%, 37.0% and 59.2%, respectively, in the first three months of 2009. The negative combined ratio for the first three months of 2010 is a result of the favorable development on prior accident years, in excess of current accident year net claims and claim expenses and underwriting expenses.

#### Lloyd s

Below is a summary of the underwriting results and ratios for our Lloyd s unit for the three months ended March 31, 2010:

#### Lloyd s overview

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	2010
Lloyd s gross premiums written	
Catastrophe	\$ 5,669
Specialty	7,723
Insurance	632
Total Lloyd s gross premiums written	\$ 14,024
Net premiums written	\$ 13,651
Net premiums earned	6,971
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	2,587
Acquisition expenses	1,159
Operational expenses	6,134
Underwriting loss	\$ (2,909)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 2,686
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior accident years	(99)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ 2,587
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	38.5%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(1.4%)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	37.1%
Underwriting expense ratio	104.6%
Combined ratio	141.7%

In 2009, we established Syndicate 1458, a Lloyd s syndicate, to start writing certain lines of insurance and reinsurance business. The syndicate was established to enhance our underwriting platform by providing access to Lloyd s extensive distribution network and worldwide licenses. Our Lloyd s unit results include Syndicate 1458, our corporate capital vehicle, RenaissanceRe CCL, prior to its inter-company cession of Syndicate 1458 business to Renaissance Reinsurance, and our managing agency, RSML. The results of our Lloyd s unit were not significant in 2009.

*Lloyd s Gross Premiums Written* In the first three months of 2010, our Lloyd s unit gross premiums written were \$14.0 million, and include property catastrophe, specialty and insurance premiums written.

*Lloyd s Underwriting Results* Our Lloyd s unit incurred an underwriting loss of \$2.9 million, primarily due to operational expenses of \$6.1 million, which principally includes compensation and related operating expenses.

#### **Insurance Segment**

Below is a summary of the underwriting results and ratios for our Insurance segment, formerly known as our Individual Risk segment, for the three months ended March 31, 2010 and 2009:

#### **Insurance segment overview**

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars, except ratios)	2010	2009	Change
Commercial multi-line	\$ 26,804	\$ 24,642	\$ 2,162
Commercial property	13,008	16,121	(3,113)
Crop	7,136	8,152	(1,016)
Personal lines property	4,932	16,234	(11,302)
Gross premiums written	\$ 51,880	\$ 65,149	\$ (13,269)
Net premiums written	\$ 13,674	\$ 32,049	\$ (18,375)
Net premiums earned	\$ 28,086	\$ 75,777	\$ (47,691)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred	(22,477)	69,626	(92,103)
Acquisition expenses	20,857	25,583	(4,726)
Operational expenses	24,400	10,642	13,758
Underwriting income (loss)	\$ 5,306	\$ (30,074)	\$ 35,380
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - current accident year	\$ 34,005	\$ 37,629	\$ (3,624)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - prior years	(56,482)	31,997	(88,479)
Net claims and claim expenses incurred - total	\$ (22,477)	\$ 69,626	\$ (92,103)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - current accident year	121.1%	49.7%	71.4%
Net claims and claim expense ratio - prior accident years	(201.1%)	42.2%	(243.3%)
Net claims and claim expense ratio - calendar year	(80.0%)	91.9%	(171.9%)
Underwriting expense ratio	161.1%	47.8%	113.3%
Combined ratio	81.1%	139.7%	(58.6%)

Insurance Segment Gross Premiums Written Gross premiums written by our Insurance segment decreased \$13.3 million, or 20.4%, to \$51.9 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$65.1 million in the first three months of 2009. The decrease was primarily due to our prior decisions to terminate several program manager relationships and a commercial property quota share contract as a result of softening market conditions, resulting in reduced commercial property and personal lines property gross premiums written. Our Insurance segment premiums can fluctuate significantly between quarters and between years based on several factors, including, without limitation, the timing of the inception or cessation of new program managers and quota share reinsurance contracts, including whether or not we have portfolio transfers in, or portfolio transfers out, of quota share reinsurance contracts of in-force books of business.

Insurance Segment Underwriting Results Our Insurance segment generated \$5.3 million of underwriting income in the first three months of 2010, compared to incurring an underwriting loss of \$30.1 million in the first three months of 2009, an increase of \$35.4 million. In the first three months of 2010, our Insurance segment generated a net claims and claim expense ratio of (80.0)%, an underwriting expense ratio of 161.1% and a combined ratio of 81.1%, compared to 91.9%, 47.8% and 139.7%, respectively, in the first three months of 2009.

The increase in underwriting income and decrease in our combined ratio was due primarily to a \$92.1 million decrease in net claims and claim expenses, which was principally driven by \$56.5 million of favorable development on prior years reserves in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$32.0 million of unfavorable development on prior years reserves in the first three months of 2009.

During the first three months of 2010, we settled the majority of our outstanding claims associated with the 2009 crop year for our crop insurance business. Due primarily to better than expected yields on late harvested crops for the 2009 crop year, we experienced significantly better than expected results on the settlement of our crop claims and, as a result, we experienced \$44.1 million of favorable development associated with our crop insurance business in the first three months of 2010. This resulted in a net underwriting gain of \$19.5 million in the first three months of 2010 and decreased the Insurance segment s combined ratio by 45.7 percentage points, after taking into consideration the fact that a portion of the underwriting gain is ceded to the Federal Crop Insurance Corporation (FCIC), as discussed below. The \$19.5 million underwriting gain includes \$15.3 million and \$4.2 million associated with our multi-peril crop insurance and crop hail lines of business, respectively. The multi-peril crop insurance is written through the FCIC. The FCIC sponsors an insurance program that provides reinsurance for participating insurers, including our Company, for multi-peril crop insurance. The terms of the reinsurance agreement with the FCIC allow us to retain only a portion of any underwriting gain or loss experienced on multi-peril crop insurance policies issued in each state. We record the underwriting gain that is not retained as additional ceded premiums written and earned which totaled \$24.7 million in the first three months of 2010, and offsets a significant portion of the \$44.1 million of favorable development on prior year reserves associated with the crop business in the first three months of 2010. These components are summarized below:

	Three months ended March 31, 2010				
	Insurance Segment excluding 2009			_	
	Crop Year		009 Crop	Insurance	
(in thousands of United States dollars)	Impact	Year	r Impact (1)	Segment	
Net premiums earned	\$ 52,761	\$	(24,675)	\$ 28,086	
Net claims and claim expenses	21,671		44,148	(22,477)	
Underwriting expenses	45,257			45,257	
Underwriting (loss) income	\$ (14,167)	\$	19,473	\$ 5,306	
Combined ratio	126.8%		(45.7%)	81.1%	

(1) The 2009 Crop Year Impact includes the favorable development on net claims and claim expense recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2010, combined with the resulting cession of a portion of the favorable development to the FCIC which is reflected as ceded premiums earned in accordance with the terms of the reinsurance agreement with the FCIC.

In comparison, during the first three months of 2009, we experienced \$32.0 million of unfavorable development on prior years reserves primarily due to a \$27.3 million increase in prior years losses in the Company s crop insurance line of business related to the 2008 crop year due to an increase in the severity of reported losses incurred during 2008 and reported during the first quarter of 2009. The net impact of this unfavorable development, after considering corresponding changes in net earned premium and related acquisition costs for the 2008 crop year, was a reduction in underwriting income of \$25.8 million and an increase in the Company s combined ratio of 33.7 percentage points.

Operational expenses increased \$13.7 million to \$24.4 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$10.6 million in the first three months of 2009, primarily due to increased compensation and benefits-related costs as a result of the Company s increased headcount and a \$6.8 million charge for impairing software related assets and recognizing severance benefits related to the Company s decision in the first three months of 2010 to discontinue a new initiative which was under development in 2009 and had yet to commence operations.

As discussed below under Reserves for Claims and Claim Expenses , the most significant accounting judgment made by management is our estimate of claims and claim expense reserves. In our crop insurance business, insureds are required under policy terms to report all potential claims whether or not the insured believes that the crops can be re-planted and harvested; therefore, management s estimates are subject to significant variability based on factors such as whether an insured is able to re-plant and ultimately harvest all or a portion of the crop, which will not generally be known until the end of the crop season, or in some cases, well into the following year, as well as what commodity prices are at the end of the policy period. In addition, management has to estimate, by type of crop and state, which losses will be ceded to the FCIC. Our estimate of net claims and claim expenses incurred for our crop insurance business reflects these judgments and actual results will vary, perhaps materially so, and be adjusted as new information is known and becomes available.

#### **Net Investment Income**

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	2010	2009	Change
Fixed maturity investments	\$ 28,643	\$ 39,127	\$ (10,484)
Short term investments	2,284	3,071	(787)
Other investments			
Hedge funds and private equity investments	17,536	(19,741)	37,277
Other	21,218	21,821	(603)
Cash and cash equivalents	66	373	(307)
	69,747	44,651	25,096
Investment expenses	(2,566)	(2,525)	(41)
Net investment income	\$ 67,181	\$ 42,126	\$ 25,055

Net investment income was \$67.2 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to net investment income of \$42.1 million in the first three months of 2009. The \$25.1 million increase in net investment income was principally driven by a \$37.3 million increase from our hedge funds and private equity investments and partially offset by a \$10.5 million decrease in net investment income from our fixed maturity investments, principally due to lower yields on these investments. The hedge fund, private equity and other investment portfolios are accounted for at fair value with the change in fair value recorded in net investment income which included net unrealized gains of \$24.9 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$17.0 million of net unrealized losses in the first three months of 2009.

Reductions in the Federal Funds rate by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Board and corresponding decline in interest rates has lowered the interest rate at which we invest our assets. We expect these developments, combined with the current composition of our investment portfolio and other factors, to put downward pressure on our net investment income for the foreseeable future. Among other factors, our current asset allocations reflect a relative reduction from earlier periods of the number of classes of securities characterized by higher estimated yields and expected risk, which has reduced the weighted average yield to maturity for our investment portfolio and which we expect will also impact future net investment income.

#### Fixed Maturity Investments - Net Realized and Unrealized Gains and Net Other-Than-Temporary Impairments

Three months ended March 31, (in thousands of U.S. dollars)	2010	2009	Change
Gross realized gains	\$ 48,887	\$ 31,423	\$ 17,464
Gross realized losses	(5,170)	(9,297)	4,127
Net realized gains on fixed maturity investments	\$ 43,717	\$ 22,126	\$ 21,591
Net unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments, trading	4,881		4,881
Net realized and unrealized gains on fixed maturity investments	\$ 48,598	\$ 22,126	\$ 26,472
Total other-than-temporary impairments	(33)	(19,022)	18,989
Portion recognized in other comprehensive income, before taxes			
Net other-than-temporary impairments	\$ (33)	\$ (19,022)	\$ 18,989

During the fourth quarter of 2009, we started designating, upon acquisition, certain fixed maturity investments as trading, rather than as available for sale and, as a result, we recognized \$4.9 million of net unrealized gains on these securities in our consolidated statement of operations for the first three months of 2010. We currently expect to continue to designate, in future periods, upon acquisition, certain fixed maturity investments as trading, rather than as available for sale, and, as a result, we currently expect our fixed maturity investments available for sale balance to decrease and our fixed maturity trading balance to increase over time, resulting in a reduction in other-than-temporary accounting judgments we make. This change will over time result in additional volatility in our net income (loss) in future periods as net unrealized gains and losses on these fixed maturity investments will be recorded currently in net income (loss), rather than as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders equity.

Net realized gains on fixed maturity investments were \$43.7 million in the first three months of 2010, compared to \$22.1 million in the first three months of 2009, an increase of \$21.6 million, as a result of a \$17.5 million increase in gross realized gains and a \$4.1 million decrease in gross realized losses. Net other-than-temporary impairments recognized in earnings were \$33 thousand in the first three months of 2010 compared to \$19.0 million for the first three months of 2009. Net other-than-temporary impairments relate to our fixed maturity investments available for sale. For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we recognized other-than-temporary impairments if we could not assert that we had the ability and intent to hold our securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value in accordance with authoritative literature. If the impairment was determined to be other-than-temporary, then an impairment loss was recognized in earnings equal to the entire difference between the security samortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, we recognized other-than-temporary impairments under updated GAAP guidance for the recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments which was adopted in the second quarter of 2009. Of the total other-than-temporary impairment charges in the first three months of 2010, \$33 thousand was recognized in earnings and includes \$33 thousand for credit losses and \$nil for investments we intend to sell, and \$nil related to other factors recorded as an unrealized loss in accumulated other comprehensive income. Under the guidance adopted in the second quarter of 2009, we recognize other-than-temporary impairments in earnings for impaired fixed maturity investments available for sale (i) for which we have the intent to sell the security or (ii) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before its anticipated recovery and (iii) for those secu

2010

2009

## **Table of Contents**

**Equity in Earnings of Other Ventures** 

Three months ended March 31,